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3. Com. Res, 27

- - L —

llondsy, December 17, 1945

congreu of the United States,

Joint Committee on the Investigation
of Pearl Harbor Attack,
Washingteon, D. C.

The Joint Comuittee met, pursuant to adjournment, at

10:00 a. m., in the Capcus Room (rcom 318), Senate Office
Building, Senatory Alben W, Barkloy' (chairman) presiding.
Preseat: Senators Barkley (che_irman), George, Lucas,

Brevster and Fergusan.
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Representatives Cooper (vice chairman), Clark, Murphy,
Gearhart and Keefe,

Alsc present; William D. Mitoholl, General Counsel;

Gerhard A. Gesell, Jule M. Hannaford and John E. Masten,

of counsel, for the joint comittee.
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The Vice Chatirman: The committee vill please be in

- order.

The Chaiyman vap called to ths White House this morning
and is detained for a fov moments, We will proceed.
Will counsel announce the first vitness,

|
||
|
} Mr. Gesell: Admiral Wilkinson.
|

Senator Brevster: Mr. Chairman.

The Vice Chaimgnz Senator Brevster,

Sepator Brevster: I would like to make a brief statement

about a matter that came up during my absence in connection

with my assistant here, Mr. Greaves,
| I am sorry I had to be ahsent, and am very scorry there
vas anything vhich seemed disturbing te the committee. It
vas not a matter about which tho're neqd be any mystexry.
Saome wveeks ago, at vhat If thought vas a full press
conference, oortqinlf a dozen or 15 vere in my office --
1 stated that I had secured Mr. Oreaves as my assistant
' and thougﬁt it vould be very necessary, as far as 1 vas
concerned, to l_mvei an assistant of this éhnraotor.
! d vas sorry that tho committee hadn't found it practi-

cable to allov the Minority some assistance, but thought

' that under the olycumatances I wvould do the best I could.
| I secured Mr. Greaves, 1 want tc make it clear that he

. has not had for many mont.ha any coonection vhatsoever with
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the Repydlican National Committes. I think he is a very
ccmpetent man.
{n connection with the episode concerned vith Senator

Lucas, 1 have here g mesmorandum from Mr, Greaves wvhich I

LEs

- would 1ike to put in the record. Mr. Greaves 13 wy assist-

ant and is being paid by me.

The Vice Chairman: Being paid by you, 414 you say,

e — S . i e S SR

Senator?

- T

'Senatcr Bravster: Yes, sir, be.:l.ng paid by me,

1 hayve this memorandum which I would like to put in the
‘record, in justice to ovorybody soncerned. It 1s signed
by Percy L. Greaves, Jr:

"Re.garding the ree*ent. unpleasantry duxjing your absence,

(pp 3605-3608), I should like to say that there never vas

D 0 "NOLDNIHSYA "MNvd ¥ AdY M

eny intention on my part t:; insult or reflect on any
Members of the Uﬁlteﬂ 'étatol Senate by thought, wvord or
action. I have great respest for Members of both Houﬁo
of Qongieu. I am surs that the Senator from Illinols
miue.ounfrued an unconscious and vh.ichl I thought vas &
silent ‘imile that vent unnot',_ir_ced by anyone elss.

"] am a reglatered Republican, but as you knov I receive

no compensation from Republic Party sources and had nov for

many months before 1 entered your service. My activities

' with you have not been of a partisan or a political nature.
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“I sincerely hope that my conduct has not eaused you
any embmasnﬁcnt and that my services meet vith youy
satisfaetion."”

I vant to add my perscnal word, that if there had
been any ground for any feeling, I T8ry mueh regret it,.

I thought the position of Mr. Greaves had been very
clesar throughout.- He h_an been here as my assistant. I
hops he may continue.

I certainly do not want him, or myself to do anything
vhich v_ould in any vay impair the proper conduct of this
veyy important inroat}gatiop.

The Vice Chairman; Does that gomplete your statement?

. 89n3§or Brevater; Yes, ai;'.

3enatar Lucas: Mr, Chairman,

The Viee Chairman: The Senator from Illinois.

Senator Lupas: Mr. Chairman, at the proper time, in
executive committee meeting I propose again to raise thia
question. I am not goj:n.g to take the valuablas time of the
committee nov to argue this question here this morning.

Not only do I propose in executive session to find out
more ibou_t. Mr. Grea{rea than has been told by the Senator
from Meine, but there are two othey gentlemen that I prﬁ-

| pose to find out something about also, vho have sat here

constantly at these hearings, and have, according to my

1
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bast mfomtim, given considerable information to members
of this committee. '

I think thil committee is entitled to knov vho every
ix}.dividual is, vhat his bacw is, vhat his motives
and purposes are, how much he is being pald, and by wvhom. -

1f I had two or three people working for me, I would

have told the commitiee all of those things leng before

thia.'

P

That is all that I ocare to say at this tims.

Senstar Brevster: Mr. Chairman.

¢
The V:)_.cc Chairman: . Senator Drevster.
Senator Brevster: In cbnnection with that corment, {f

the usual consideration accorded by other ccmitigeu, ‘parti-
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cularly by some aof the standing omltt;on of the Senats,

and the comnittee wvhich more than ahy other has established

a pecord for investigation in the past four yearys, 1if the

practice prevailing in those committees had been folloved,
I am sure the accasion for the comment of tho Senator from
Illinols vbuid nbt l}pve Qcourred.

Under the circu;l tances, other steps have been neces-
sary.

If there is to be an investigation, as he suggests,

there may also be an investigation of the associations

and connections of those more actively identified vith the

committes, but I am sure ve will be embarking on something
that wvill carry us a rather long vay.
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"Senator Lu;m.a; Yos'ix 5

. m Senator Brewster: There are a good many things that
have occurred which have not impressed the minority. They
 are matters of record. If we are going to start on that we

“ | will make a complete job of 1it.

-j

Senator Lucas: Mr. Chairman --
o The Vice Chairman: The Senator from Iilmoia.
0 Senator Lucas: One ﬁwro word. There is no precedent
[ for any special committee such as the Senator rrom Maine
" || suggests. There is precedent on sta;ldmg comnittees and those
2 | committees are presumed to be composed of Republicans and
' Democrats who look after partisan matters and look arter the
b . principles on which the parties operate.
! .

1o

This was presumed to be a non-partisan investigation.

= O "NOLONIHEYM MINvd ¥ Qavsy

6| Mr. Keefe: Will the gentleman yield?

t q : e | Senator Luocas: Just a moment.

| '. . This was presumed to be a non-partisan investigation

.’: L4) ' and there is no precedent, according to my informants, where
et a special committee or this kind has had any minority repre-

«1 | sentation, and that is especlally true in view of the fact

% | that everyone in the first instance agreed that General

Mitchell should act as counsel here in this case for us all.

T e g i et BT e
-
o —

«9 “ Senator Brewster: Mr. Chairman --

23 | Mr. Keefe: Will the gentleman yield?

Lt Tk 1
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Senator Brewster: Hr; Chairman --
The Vice Chﬁirmanz I hope we can proceed soon, Senator.
Senator Brewster: Yes.

i will be a l1little more specific in the comment wvhich I
made. Aaiﬁe from the standing committees I did have reference
to the special committee investigating the doreﬁae establish-
ment which has been functioning throughout the past four
years and which I thought had accumulated considerable reputa-
tion, and which has always had minority assistants as members
of its staff.

And, I might add, that 1t 1s a very significant, and 1
think of & very non-partisan character, in the whole four
years of its history it has never had & minority report or
any character or a divided repordt, and it néver had any such
difficulties as this committee has faced. That 13 what has
reinforced my impression that 1f wall-aatablishedﬁpraoticeu
of the Truman Committee had been followed much of the diffi-
culty here would have been avoided. I S&y that in all
kindliness.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman .

The Vice Chairmen: Mr. Murphy.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman, we have an Admiral of the

Navy waiting, hava had for ten minutes, while wve have been

discussing Mr. Greaves. 1 Lope thal ws Jan proceed.

: . | . b7 ' |
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The Vice Chairman: Mr. Keefe, did you want recognition?

Mr. Keefe: I was going to make the same suggestion that
Mr. Murphy has made, put in view of the statement of the
Senator from Illinois as to the purposes of nis investigation,
I simply wvanted to say that I was very much impressed with
the long newspaper account in the newspapers yesterday where
the Senator from Illinois proposed to investigate the Dewey
incident to its ultimate conclusion.

{ vonder if that is prompted by & non-partisan attitude.
I wonder whether we are investigating Pearl Harbor or Mr.
Dewey. Are we going to go off on a lot of other matters?

The Vice Chairman: I hope that we donit get 1nfo a
discussion or every newspaper article.

Senator Lucas: Mr. Chairman --

The Vice Chairman: Senator Lucas.

Senator Lucas: The Dewey ietteru wvere placed in the
record here by General Marshall and they were thought to be
pertinent and material to this investigation by counsel, at
least certain portions of them were thought to be material
and pertinent, and the thing that I want to find out in
connection with Mr. Dewvey, and the only thing I want to find
out, i1f it can be found out, is who gave him this top secret,

if 1t was given to him, and I think the country and this

committee is entitled to know.
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Mr. Keefe: What has that to do with Pearl Harbor?

Senator Iucas; It has plenty to do with Pearl Harbor, 1if
somebody is giving away top secrets that are the highest

ever considered by this nation; much more than about 90
percent of the quéstions that have been asked by the Congress-
man from Wisconsin heve to do with Pearl Harbor.-

The Vice Chairman: Obviously that would not be a proper
matter to go into at this time. The Chair hopes that we may
proceed with the witness before us.

Anyone else?

Senator Ferpuson: Mr. Chairman --

Tho_Vioe Chairman: The Senator from Michigan.

Senator Ferguson: I just want to plaée on the record
the comment that my silence does not mean that I agree with
what has been said here by Senator Lucas this morning; and
I think it would be of interest to go into the past employ-
ment of each of the employees of the ocmnitte; and their present
salary on the committee; but that we may proceed with Pearl

Harbor I am not going into that this morning.
The Vice Chalirman: Of course, the Chair feels con-

atrained to make this statement in connection with the remarks

of the Senator f'rom Michigan. Every employee of this committee,

so far es the Chair knows, was selected by unanimous action

of the comnitise.

- — . | — e o 4 . - «
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Senator Brewater: Mr. Chalrman, I am su»e yru do not
mean to put that in the record as a fact. The fsats are that
Senator Barkley and the Cbngv;aaman now oresidinz and myself
were membevs of a sub-committee which Aid hawve certaln al-
leged powers, but aside from Mr, Mitche'l and Mr. Gesell, the
seleotion of the other two members of the counsellor staff
wasynot known even to me as a member of the Sub-committee.

I 40 not mean to be intimating a challenze of theip
Capacity but I never knew anything directly rezardine thelrp
terms of employment, theivr salarvy and, as a matter of faot, I
know even little & the present time.

The Vice Chairman: Well, I think the statement I
made 18 accurate and correct and certalnly in no executive
sesslion of this committee has any member of the committes.
ralsed any question or intimated any objection to any member
of the staff., I am oconfident that 8 tatement 18 absolutely
and techniocally accurate.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Chairman, 1t was conceded that theve
was a sutmittee named consisting of Senator Bavkley, fongress-

man Cooper and the Senator from Maine ang the Senator from

Maine had the responsibllity as one member of that committee

with regard to hiving our staff,

I hope we will g0 on with Pearl Harbow- now, There 18 an

Admiral waiting,

The Vice Chairman: Of course, it wae the vurpose of

~N
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1 the committee to t vy to oconduct a non-partisan, non-politiocal

T investigation and all employes of the coumlttee are emplo7yes

3 || of the whole committee and as far as the chair is advised

4 and knows every employe of the committee has endeavored to

5 fully coopevate with every member of the committee.

6 It 1is my privilezge to be a member of several Jjoint com-
7 || mittees. I am a member of the Joint Committee on Internal

. B 8 Revenue Taxation. There 18 no minority or majority employes.
p* 0 The staff 1q for the whole Joint Committes.

10 I am a member of the Joint Committee of the Reduction

11 of nonessential Federal expendituves headed by Senator Byrd.

12 So far as I know there has never been any minovity or majovr-

13 ity employes. They are employes of the Joint Committee.

14 I am a member of the committee on Post-war Economic ™ oligy

15 and Planning of the House and there has never been any min-

S .0 MOTAOMIHIAW JUAM & OBAW

16 ority or majority employes. All employes serve the full

17 committee.

18 Now, Admiral, will you please be sworn?

19 . i

20 TESTIMONY OF REAR ADMIRAL THEODORE STARK WILKINSON
. 21 . (being first duly sworn by the vice-chairman)

2z Mr, Geselli At'the‘oﬁtaet I think perhaps we can di-

23 rect attention to the principal exhibits which will be

24 || oovered in Admiral Wilkinson's testimony.

28 The first, of couvrse, is exhibit 37, which is alrveady

|
|

I " ‘ 1 L]
- sl bads 2 ™) & l-‘-: .ln'i‘huﬂ‘.-l-.;—T‘td.hllllirh“i‘;#‘



183

10

11

12

13

14

IS

3 0 HMOTOMIHEAW JUAS 4 ORAW

i &

18

10

20

21

22

23

4

]

4559

|Witness Wilkinson Questicns by: Mr, Gesell

in evidence, the basioc exhibit of Navy dlspatchee.

I would like to call attention to two matters 1in con-
nection with that exhibit at this time, “hen the exhiblt was
prepared, for reasons of security as to which the committee
is fully informed the wovd.'puvble" was eliminated from two
dispatches. 1In view of developments since that date the
;ovd "purple" no longer has any secuvlty aiénificanoo and for
that vreason we would like to amend the dispatches merely to
put that word in at the appropriate place. IU fivret appearvs
at page 12 of the exhilbit. |

The Vice Chairman: This is exhibit number what?

Mv. Gesell: 37, basio Navy dispatches. At page 12,
the first line of the dispatch should vread, "Tokyo to Vichy
No. 295." Insevrt "purple" "of 19th." So the word "purple”
will appear in that dlspatoh, |

More importent, pevh&pa,‘rrom the point of view of the
heaving i1é the insertion of the word "purple" in two piaoes
on the dispatch which appears at page 4l. That 1s the dls-
patch of December 2nd from OPNAV to CINCAF and others con-
cerning code destruction, The word "puvrple" should appear
af ter the word "destvoy" in the second line and agaln after
the word "destroy" in the fouvth line,

Also at page 10 the wird word of the dispatch should

be "purple."

|
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mrv. Gesell

We would like to introduce other exhibite at this time
which have been in the hands of the cocmmittee now for several
weeks. |

The first as exhibit 78, a folder designated "Dispatches
on Kra Peninsula alevt."

As exhiblt 79 a folder designated, "Dispatches on Dutch
alet'tn'

As exhibit 80 a serles of photoetated doouments, Fort-
nightly Summaries on Current National Situations."

and as exhibit 81, a folder contalining varlous special
estimates made by the Office of Naval Intelligence on the Fav
Fastevn 8ituation in the pevlod preceding Pearl Harbor attack,
copmencing with a special estimate dated February 15, 1941 and
going up to December 6, 1941,

I might say these latter iwo qxhibits. 80 and 81, ocom-
prise data comparable to that contained in the -basio exhiblt
of estimates which was introduced in conneoticn with ‘General
Miles' testimony as exhibit 33, .

Jenator Brewster: Do I und=vrse tand whether we have Peon
given coples of these yetl

Mr. Gesell: Yes, I think several weeks &go, Senalovr.

The Vice Chaivman: The exhibits will be admitted as

iindioated by counsel.

- - { ol |
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Questions by My, Gesell

Witness Wilkinson

(The documents fororrod‘to were |
marked Exhibite Nos., 78, 79, 80
and 81,)
Mr. Gesell: Admiral, will yYou please state yYour name,
your vank and present duty for the vecord, please, sir?
Admiral Wilkinson: Theodore Stark Wilkinson, Vice-
Admival U.S. Navy, vecently commander of the Third Amphibious : |
Foroe of the Pacific "leet and now awalting the pleasure of |

the committee, subsecuently to Join the Navy Department fov

| duty.

Mvr, Gesell: Duving whgt period of time wevre you Chief
of the ONIT?

Admival Wilkinson: From October the 15th, 1941 until,
as I recall, July the 20th, 1942, I will, of course, how-
ever, be glad to speak of anything within my knowledze of
events before Ootober 15th. ,

Mr. Gesell: What had been your duty immediately prior
to your conn=otlon with ONI?

Admirgl Wilkinson: I had been commanding officer of the
battleship Mississippl for some nine months and before that
a year and a half Chief of Staff to Vice Adﬁival Andrews ,

commander of the scouting foroe and of the Hawaiian detach-

ment.

Mr., Gesell: How long have you been in the Navy, Admiral?
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr, Gesell

Admiral Wilkinson: Foriy years and a half.
Me. Gesell: During that time you have had dquty at Hawaiil,

have yocu nott¥

Admiral Wilkinson: Intermittently. My last and only
tour of some length was with Admiral Andrews for about a year

and a half in Hawall and then subsequently on the Mississippl

for 8ix months additional.

Mvr. Gesell: Vell, now, that would leave you at Hawall

during what period of time?
Admival Wilkinson: From October 1939 untll May 1941,

Mr. Gesell: Weve you statlicned at Hawail your whole tlme

svom Ootober 1939 on, or did you go out therve when the fleetl

went_out there?

Admiral Wilkinson: I was with the so-called Hawallan
detachment, which was a force of vessels, and my dutles wevre
entirely at sea. We operated off Hawail and from time to

time went in port. At no time was I on shore duty there, nor

have been.

Mr. Gesell: Prior to Joining the ONI 'on October 15,

1941 had you had any experience 1in the field of naval in-

telligenoce?
Admiral Wilkinson: None other than attendance at two

international conferences for limitation of armamente in

1935 and 1934,
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| Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mv. Gesell

Mv . Gesell: Had you ever had any experience 1in the
Navy's fleld of activities ‘ocomparable to what the femy calle
their War Plans Division?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes. At sea, as Chlef of Staff to
Admiral Andvews and agaln as gunnory-offioer and assistant
officer to Admiral Willard some ten years befovre, but not on
shorve.

Mr. Gesell: The precise title which ycu held in ONI
was Diveotor of Naval Intellizence , is that correct?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes,

Mr. Gesell: Do I understand that that was in the nature

| of a position comparable to that o2cupied by Generval Miles

of the #rmy? That 18 to say, that you were a member of the

‘Yomediate staff of the Chlef of Naval Operations?

Admiral Wilkinson: Comparable but not entirely simllar
in that the Chief of Naval Opevations had under him not a
general staff but an office composed of a number of divislons.
His responsibilities weve somewhat different from the Chlef
of Staff of the Army and the vresponsibilities of his several
divisions weve quite different from those of the General Staff
of the Army,

Mr., Gesell: But the immediate advisevs to the Chlef of
Naval Oper:tions would be the varicus directore of the prin-

cipal divisions?
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Ge sell

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Gesell: Now, can you indicate for us what the other
pvinoipél divisions of the Navy organization are in addition
to the Office Of Naval Intelligence?

Admiral Wilkinson: The CGhief of Operations was by law
chavrged with the operations of the fleet and‘the preparvation
and readiness of plane for use in war. By vegulations he
wae chavged with the coovdination of efforts of all bureaus
of the Department to maintain and make ready the fleet. He
had to asslst him in these duties several dlvisions, as you
asked: The War Plans Division, the Centvai Division, the
Communiocaticns Division, Ship Movements, Fleet Maintenance,
Fleet Tvaining,'Néval Intelligence and possibly one ovr two
others.

Mr, Gesell; Can you tell y8 who were during the period
lmmedliately preceding Pearl Harbor vresponsible as directors
of those vrespective divisions?

Admiral W4lkinson: War Plans, Rear #dmiral Turner;
Central Division, :Captain Schuirman; Cormunications, Rearv
Admiral Noyes;, Ship Movements, Rear Admiral Brainard; Fleet
Maintenance, I bellieve Rear Admiral Farber; Fleet Tvaining
I forget at the moment, and Naval Intellizence myself.

Mr. Gesell: Well, now, will you give us some 1dea of

what the vresponsiblilities and functions and ovrganization of
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr, Gesell

| Naval Intelligence were?

Admiral Wilkinson: Navel Intelligence had three prinoci-
pal branches, the Administrative, Domestic Intellizence and
Foreign Intelligence.

The Administrative carried out its voutine duties with
regard to personnel, and procurement and assignment of duty
of personnel; finances, mail, the issue and févwavding of
all reports, r~eproduction, printing and generzl files, a
normal administrative office.

The Domestic division carried on the investigation of

esplonage and consplratorial ovganizations and individuals,

looked after coastal intelligence along the coast of the
United States with vespect to Information that could be pilcked
up from boats and otherwise, gant inspections to make sure
that the plants in whioch the Navy was involved were safe both
from a mechanical viewpoint as to fire and other hazards and
safe from a seocurity viewpoint as to national secrete; that
18 the plants, I am speaking of, in which confidential wovk
was going on., This Domestic branch also investizated oandidates
for confidential Navy Department employment and candidates
for employment with the Naval Intelligence Service itself.

It organlzed and conducted in geneval schools for of-
flcers and men to he assigned to intelligence. Its principal

duties were those I first mentioned, the investigation of

-
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esplionase and conspiratorlal or subversive organizations and

| individuals. They ccnducted a survey of the country in con-

nootionpwith.FB; and Milltavy Intelligence and maﬁk;d down
such suspeots as were known by the ocontaocts, by the lavrge
number of oontacte we had, It was this work that enabled us
to vun in, as you might say, to get tal®n into custody im-
medlately after the war some eight thousand suspeoth of
varlous Axls nations and I think in large part contributed to
the fact that a‘t no time during the last war was there any
serious sabotaze in this country.

The Forelgn Intelligence comprlised a number of geographio
seotlone, such as the British Eplre, the Far East, Western
Europe, Central Europe, EaatorﬁtEurOpo. the Balkans and Near
Eg8t, American Republics, and then certain other sections such
as forelgn trade in mevrchant vess els, statistics in oconnec-
tion with forelgn navies and matters of trade and two sec-
tions known as Speoial Intellligentce and Strategic Information.

The duties ;f the office as a whole and of the foreign
branch in partisular and of eaoch geographic section was to
collect, evaluate and forward to interested agencies intellil-
gence received from abroad ov pisked up from newspapevs orv

otherwilse with relation to the several foreign countries under

each zeographic sectlon. The evaluation would oconsistcf con-
'81dering the sonrce, considering the veliebility of the infor-
matlon whioch he had obtlalined and iis consistenoy with other
iproven information that we had.

A\l




Shack (1) am

follows
sShefner

AL-1

D G '"NOLONIHSYM TNvd & OHY M

tl

H

f)

| ()

)}

s e w e pe— - e nfl—— =
- - - -

— - -

—_—— e ——

Witness Wilkinson

-that time.

b567

Questions by: Mr. Gesell

In addition to those main sections there was a small
section of Records and Library, Historical Section, and one
of Censorship, which was held in the nucleus, ready to go into
action wvhen the national censorship was declared. That,
of course, could not be declared before the war situation
and there was no censorship in the United States prior to
That was the main office. |
Mr. Gesell: Before you leave the main offlce, was there
also a branch known as Fleet Intelligence?

Upon the institution of Admiral

Admiral Wilkinson: No.

King's Commander in Chief Off'ice, he set up a Fleet Intelligence

vhich vas directly under his office and was related to the
office of Naval Intelligence, but at the time that we were
operating before Admiral King came in, in I belleve January
or February of 1942, there was no specific office of Fleet
Intelligence, as I recall.

Mr. Gesell: Did the 0ffice of Naval Intelligence do
the work with respect to keeping track of the movements of
the Japanese and other potential enemy navion vessels?

Admiral Wilkinson: Very 'def‘init.oly.

Mr. Gesell: Where was that work done in this organization
‘aoheme? .

Admiral Wilkinson: 1In each of' the foreign sections.

Mr. Gesell: In other words, the Far Eastern branch of
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ihe Foreign Intelligence Section would keep track of the
movements of the Japanese vessels?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir. May I continue with the
field?

Mr. Gesell: Yes, sir.

Admiral Wilkinson: That was the office. The personnel
at the time of December lst were 230 officers and 175 enlisted
men and 300 civilians in the main office, including the
branches I have spoken of, and the school which took & number.
In the Naval Districts there were about 1,000. 1 have the
figures for November 15 and December 15, and I am interpolating
between the two. There were about 135 agents who were civilisn
employees of considerable detective and analytical skill;

900 enlisted men and 100 civilians. These were the Naval
Districts throughout the country and in Hawaii, Panama and
the Philippines.

‘ In the foreign posts there were 133 officers and 200
enlisted men, and no civiliens. In the foreign posts there
vere naval attaches and naval observers throughout the world.
The naval attaches were at the capitals, and naval observers,

a naval equivalent of a Consul, at a number of ports. We

vere obtaining our information in large part from these naval

attaeches in the foreign nations, from the naval attaches and

obeervers in there porte, and in part from the State Department
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ofrioials and in part radio intercepts which we received
from the Radio Communications office.

Mr. Gesell: QGoing back to your organization for a moment
more, there was an assistant director of the division, was
there not?

Admiral Wilkinson: There was an a.uutaqt director who
at the time was awalting relief, as the Director of the Domestulc
Branch. He was doubling at the time and subsequently became
relieved, ia.mi became full-time Assistant Director.

Mr. Gesell: What was his name?

Admir;I Wilkinson: That was Captain, now Rear Admiral

Howard Kingman.
Mr. Gesell: Who was in charge of the Foreign Intelligence

branch?

Admiral Wilkinson: Captain W. A. Heard.

Mr. Gesell: Who was specifiocally responsible for the
Far Eastern section of that bra.noh?

Adriral Wilkinson: Commnander, now Captain McCollum.
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Mr. Gesell; Admiral, I have in my hand a three-sheet

mimeographed document emtitled "Intelligence Division (oP 16).

Duties:”

Does that document correctly summarize the duties of
the Intelligencs Pivilion as it vas set up and cperating
1m;diat91; prior to Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Wilkinson: }n genersl, yes. You vill note on
page 2, sub-paragraph (c) they spesak of dutles of the
sublic relations braneh.  That had been a part of the
office of Naval Intelligence, but in the middle of the
year 1941, I belleve 1t was detached and placed directly
under the Secretary's office, and in consequence that en-
tire lub-pa.ragraﬁ_l vas no longer offective.

Mr. Guell Does that dommont corroctly state ths
duties of the Foreign Intolligonce Branch?

Admiral Wilkinson: In general, yes. 1in stem (a)(2),
thereof, "Evaluate ‘tha inromgtion coll:-cted and dissominate
as adyisable," the éofMtion of "evaluation” which has
been . advanced in comnection with Genoral Miles? teltimony
is somevhat in. conflict with that in the Fayy in that in
(-2 evaluation of mformtion maluded the determination
of the probab;.e oy prospective :Lntenf..t_ona of the eneny.

'That, hovever, vas not one of the duties of the 0ffice

of Neval Intelligence.

: i
¥
" ' 3 i
Ty e e B BTN TV SV MW PSRl Fw Aee iim



$ $571
' Witness Wilkinson Questions hv: Mr. Gesell

t

Mr. Gesell: I want to return to that in a wmoment.

Adwiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

Mr. Gesell: I would like to offer this three-page

- | statement of the duties of the Intelligence Division as

U the next exhibit, Exhibit 82.
|

7 | The Vice Chairman: It will be so received.

8 | (The document referred to vas

g marked Exhibit No. 82.)

10 Mr. Gesell:; I ask you, Admiral, to read the duties

)1 of the Foreign Intelligence Branch.

12 Admiral Wilkinson: "The Foreign Intelligence Branch

B wvill;

14 "(1) Secure all classes of pertinent information con-

17 || cerning foreign countries, especially that affecting naval

2 O 'NOLONIHSYAM "MNYd ¥ QHYMN

¢ and maritime matters, with particular attention to the

17 strength, disposition and probable intentions of foreign ; ;
16 | naval forces. | ' V
19 | "(2) Evaluate the information collected and dissemi- I
20 | nate as advisable.

21 "{3) Direct the activities of U.S. Naval Attaches.

22 | "(4) Maintain liaison with naval missions.”
Naval wissions were special bodies sent to various

& countries on their request in order to train their navy.
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"(5) Meintain liaison with foreign naval attaches

accredited to the United States.

"(6) Maintain liaison with other Government depart-

Q wents for the exchange of foreign information.,”

Mr. Gesell: Now, under item (a)(i), it 1s clear that
one of the duties of the QHI vas to secure or collect
information concerning the disposition and probable inten-
tions of foreign naval forces, was it not?

Admiral Wilkinson:; Yes, sir., We were to secure every-
thing wve could which was factual, and which would be of
value in determining those intentions.

Mr. Gesell; Now, 1s it also clear that under item (2)
ONI had the responsibility of disseminating such information
to all concerned? '

Adwiral Wilkinson: You will note that term "as advis-
able,”" which means as may have been directed from time to
time. There were directions which we had received in that
connection.

Mr. Gesell: I want to be sure I understand you. I under-
stand you to testify on that point thus far, as follows, that
it was the responsibility of ONI to assemble the information
as to the disposition and probable intentions of foreign naval

naval forces.

Adwmiral Wilkinson; Entirely.

4 » - » b g i "' 3 -
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Mr. Gesell: That the responsibility of evaluating

such information vas not the responsibility of ONI.
; Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. With respeect to its
> ;cwraoy, very definitely. With respsct to the determina.
| tion of probable intentions of itself, it was not.
Mr. Go;ollz {n other vords, OH_I simply indicated
|, Vhen it had collected the informationm, vhether it con-
sideresd it resliable or not, and 1f se, vhat degree of re-

0
& liability it attached to the iﬂfgrmation_

-' Admiral Vilkinson: Yes, and to gl;o best of our guess
‘ ve would advise the Offioo of Chief of Naval Operations
vhat ve thought 1t meant.

Mr, Gesell: But you did not have, as one of your func-

- | tions, the responsibility of determining vhat the probable

2 O "NOLDONIHSYM "MINYd 9 JHYM

| intentions of the forsign naval forces would be?

e Adairal Wilkinson: No. I vas advised by my predecessor

that he had bsen told by the Chief of Naval opsrations,

16|
o | the Assistant Chief, and Director oi' War Plans, that the
) Office of Naval Inte}ligonea wvould not prepare fh- estimate
| or probable intentions of the enemy, as had been done- in
| the War Department, but that War Pil.ana vould assume tl';lt _

| I have subsequently consulted Admiral Ingersoll on that

samé subjeoct, and I stated that I felt wve had considerable
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talent in the ofrioo that might be prepared to do that,

but that I understood this from my predecessor, and Admiral

Il_:gorloll confirmed 1it.

Mr, Gegell: These duties that I have just introduced

as Exhibit 82, vere established by the order of the Chief ;'

of Naval Operations on October 23, 1940, were they not?

Admiral Wilkinson; I believe so.

Mr. Gesell Do you know of any formal vritten amend-

ment of those duties, Admiral?

Admiral Wilkinsoen: No, sir. For instance, I knowv of no

amendment that removed the Public Relations Branch from that |

office, but perhaps that has been ovorloﬁlr.ad in the general
corrections. '

Mr. Gesell: 8o that by vord of mouth, and dissussion,

the :ruponl:l.'bilitiol of ONI under this gensral statement
of its duties vere quali?iod, anﬁ amended; is that correot?
Admivral Wilkmsoﬁz I wvould not say amended. I wvould
say’ qualified, bacause there is nothing in the spescific
text that would ra;:xuiro us to disseminate the probable
intentions of the enemy, as I rsad it.
Mr. OJesell: Are we clear thus far, that it wvas your : {

duty to assemble the information; it vas your duty to de-

tsrailne ites degree of reliasblility, and it was the duty of

somevny 0lue to dotermine what tho probable intentiona of
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: _’ the enemy wvould be?
N Admiral Wilkinson: That vas my uﬁdnrltmdlng, except,
of course, I vas willing a.r.ﬂmxioui that the efforts and'
abilities of our office should contribute our viev of the
enemy intention to the Ofr;co of Naval Operations.

Mr, Gesell: I am talking, you understand, though,
Admiral, as to your duties, ‘as to your responsibilities.

Admiral Hilzk;n;an: Quite right.

Mr, Gegell: It wvas not your responsibility or duty to
datarmiﬁa' the probable intdntionl ot: ".t_',he enemy?

Admiral Wilkinson: I did not po understand, and I have

she information, as I said, from my predecessor, my discus-

sion vith Admiral Ingsrsoll, the Agsistant Chief of Opera-
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tions, and just this morning from Admiral Kirk, also my
predecessoy, |

Mr, Gesell: Yeu recall a conversation with Admiral
Kirk to that effect?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Gesell; I understand he talked about. the nmntter
vith Adairal Ingersoll and he also advisad you.

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir. |

Hf. Gesell: Did you ovei discuss the matter with Admiral
Stark?

fdmiral Wilkinson: Ko, sir.




—
- - " — il

h7

LN -

M {

' il _..l.h--_,.. ¥ g W

S 1 "NOLONIHEYM 'TNYd 9 Qv

(1

]

11)

i 20
|

1 ;

- e e

4576

WVitness Wilkinson Questions by: Nr. Gesell

Mr. Gesell; Nov, vith respeet to the responsibility
for dissemination, I \mi;lor'itooﬂ ya'li to testify that your
ruponnibility for dissemination vas qualified by the vords
"as advisable," and that you had orders instructing you
as to vhat typ» of information should bg disseminated. Is
that correct?

Admiral Vilkinson: I said thattﬂe text of the regu-
lations vhich you introduced rsad "Evaluate t-ho informa-
tion collected and disseminate as advisable,”

I underatood our duties to be, and still understand,
to disseminate and sprsad abroad all typss of basie informa-
“ion, vhat General m.lol had termed astatio mrqmtion,
such aas the derenu*a of the country, its sconomics, the
diplomatiec relations, the characters and activities and
proviou’ careers of its military and naval men, the lacation
of its fleets, the actual movements of its fleets and every-
thing other than the enemy proﬁahle intentions, and swuch
spscific information as in itself might give rise or might
require action by our fleet, or by our naval forces.

In the latter case befors dissemination I would consult
higher authority, either the Aulistagt ?hiaf, the Chiof*
of Naval Operations, or my calleagus, Chief of War Plans,

in ordey that this information wvhich'l sent out vould not

be in conflict with his understsnding of the naval situva-

\
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tion, and the opsrations for wvhich he vas responsible.

Mr, Gesell: In other words, you had the responsibility

to disseminate, but vhere you reached a situation vhich

led you to feel that the information disseminated might

approach the area of a directive, or an order to take some

epeoific astion to the racipient, then you felt you vere

required to sonsult War Plans, or the Chief of Naval

Opsratione?

Admiral Wilkinson;

Exactly,

-
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M-, Gsseli: I have just been handed, at the opening of

. : '_ this hearing, Admiral Wilkinscn, & memorandum which I vanted
to read to you and ask you 1if you are familiar with this

memorandum or have ever seen it. It 1s:

vconfidential Memorandum, December 12, 1940.

"prom the Chief of Naval Operations.

"mo: The Director, Naval Intelligence Division.

"Subject: Fortnightlﬁ summary of Current National
Situations.

"Enclosure: (A) D:Litribution List.

ny. 1In view of present world conditions, the Chief of
Naval Operations believes that there is a need for keepling

responsible Fleet and Force Commanders, and important Navy
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Department qxoouniva agencies, in closer touch vith important

= Q

aspects of the situation which may affect decisions on the
aature qd direction of initial war operations of the Naval
Forces. It is, therefore, requested, that the Director of
Naval Intelligence prepare fortnightly for 1limited distribution
a oonrid.ent_.ial and condensed summary of the current situation
under headings as fcllows:

"A. The diplomatic situation.

" Japanese, German, I[talian, French, Russien, latin

| American.

"B. The Japanete milita.rj situation.
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"C. The Japanese naval situation.

"D. The Chinese military situation.

“E. The German military, naval, and air situations.

The Italian naval and air situations.

"2. Under each general heading & condensed and broad
view of the situation should be summarized, with paragraphs
following in necessary detail to give recent diplomatie,
military, or naval trends.

"3. It 18 desired that no information be included per-
taining to the United States, British or Dutch military or
naval disposition and strengths; nor should reference be made
to United States war plans or secret diplomatic conversations."

Signed, "H. R. Stark."

The distribution list shows substantial distribution
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both in the field and within the Navy Department, including
the Commender in Chief, U. S. Fiaat, Commander in Chief,
Aslatic Fleet. I |

Do you remember having seen that memorandum of December
12, 1940?

Admiral Wilkinson: 1 did not see 1t until this morning,

but I was fully avare of its torms as conveyed to me, and I

was issulng, or my office was issuing such & fortnightly

bulletin throughout my tenure of of'fice.

— e — i — - — . -

As you will note, the cperetions of the anti-Axis nations
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vicye 40t %> be included in it, and when Russia came into the
var that was also added to the 1ist of operations ve shoulad
not discuss, and also our own cperations wvere not included.

Thé diatributioﬁ vas materially expa.ndod_. The original
sheet there shows distribution of something less than 20,

I believe. Eventually, at the time of the first of December,
that distribution 1ist was up around 120, going to-all flag
afficers, or the commands of all flag officers in the field,
in the Naval Districts and in the Office of Naval Intelligence.

" Mr. Gesell: Now we have introduced some of these fort-
nightly summaries, the ones Mdmtely preceding Pearl Harbor,
and they are contained in Exhibit &0.

Wwhat I am particularly concerned with now, Admiral, 1s
the instruction from Admiral Stark that these fortnightly
summaries should not contain information concerning secrat
diplomatic conversations.

Did you understand that you were under orders from
Admiral Stark not authorized to send to send to the field
{nformation concerning secret diplomatic conversations?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, because of the general securlty
attached to the code-breaking activities.

'Mr. Gesell: Do you k:nov wvhetnher the recipients of_ these

fortnightly summaries had ever beéen apprised or advised that

you were not going to submit to them information concerning
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secret diplomatic conversations?

Admiral Wilkinson: I do not know. Of course in each

bulletin there was a diplomatic section, and everything that

could be obtained outside of the secret material was in there,

and possibly some reflection, in guarded terms, on the secret

material and its bearing in the diplomatic sections of this

bulletin. : : ,

Mr . Gesall: That is just what concerns me. ¥V~u have
& diplomatic section in your fortnightly summary and you have
instructions limiting tne nature of the information you can
place in that section.

Admiral wWilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Gesell: Just what is secret aiplomatic information
Oor What are secret diplomatic canversations? What did you
understand that to exclude?

Admiral Wilkinson: As I say, I had not seen the text
of that bulletin, but I found i1t a going concern and my general
Instructions were I was not to put anything in there, anything
derived from what wvas kmown as "ultra" op "magic”. We thought
the general trend of the diplomatic conversations which might
be indicated in magic as belng adverse would be so indicated
in the bulletin, but specific quotations, or specific facots

known only to the diplometic magic was not to be placed in

there. .
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itp. Gesell: In other words, it referred to conversations
at least in which our Government was participating, did it not?

Admiral Wilkinson: Information wvhich we might obtain
from our naval atvaches or other sources, so long as it vas
not the product of code-breaking activity. We got a great
deal of information from State Department dispatches which
ve were privileged to examine, and ve got quite'a little from
our attaches and naval observers from abroed.

Mr. Gesell; Your functions with respect to the d1aa§m1.na-
tion of information, which we have been discussing here, re-
mained the same under the various War Plans, did they not?
what is, the Naval Intelligence had, under the different War
Plans, the similar responsibility of collecting and disseminat-
ing information, if advisable?

Admiral Wilkinson; I should say so. I 4o not recall

any mention of Naval Intelligence specifically in any of the

War Plans.

Mr. Gesell; I notice in War Plan 46, and in War Plan 52,
in each instance a chapter and section under the Assignment
of Tasks, wvhich specifies that the Office of Naval Intelligeace.

either alone or in cooperation with the other participating

Governments, would secure and disseminate as advisable what-

sver information was necessary in carrying out the plan.

Admiral Wilkinson: I do not recall that specifilcally,
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but I take it as a routine entry.

Mr. Gesell: I want to turn to a discussion of Japanese
intercepts with you at this point, Admiral, and see 1i we can
get a clear understanding o:i what the functions of ONI were
in respect of the Japanese intercepts.

Who, or what department in the Navy, was responsible for
intercepving the Japanese messages?

Admiral Wilkinson: The Division of KRaval Communications
srranged for interception and for decryption.

Mr. Gesell:; Now the Division of Naval Communications
you stated was under Admiral Noyes, did you not?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Gesell: That wvas not a division which went through
ym:lr chain of command?

Admiral Wilkinson: No,.1it was a parallel division in
ouy nmoexztionn.

Mr. Geselil: Did that division also have the responsli-
bility for decoding and translating messages?

Admiral Wilkinson:; Yes, except we furnished them, as
best we could, translators whom we had scoured the country
for, and in finding an inadequate number we had actually
started, on the rirst of October, two schools for Japanese

translators, one in Californie and cne in Harvard.

Mr. Gesell: But the responsibllity for reception, re-~
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Japanese messages during the period that you were director of
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parviibllity for decoding and responsibility ror translation

all rested in the Division of Communications?

Admiral wilkinson: Certainly intercepting and certainly

decoding.

I am not quite clear in my mind about translation.

I think the translation was done under that same central

office by translators who were assigned to that duty and who

aad been found by us and in part vere paid by us but were told

to report to that office.

Mr. Gesell: You understand I am again talking nov in

terms of chain of command.

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Gesell: Rather than whether or not you had cooperated
by helping them through the loan of personnel, and so forth. 4

Admiral Wilkinson: I think the translation itself -

was in that chain of command, but of course the cooperation

'between Admiral Noyes and myself and our officers was, I think, |

quite complete, and certainly very friendly.

Mr. Gesell: Did you then receive the message for the

first time, any particular message, after it had peen inter-

cepted, decoded and translated and was in an English text

form?

Admiral W:leinabn: Yes.

Mr. Gesell: Now who in the Navy received the invercepted
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C:lZ preceding Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Wilkinson: In the finished form that you just

— i — W
-

mentioned?
b | , ' HI‘- GBBO].].: YGB .
I g Admiral Wilkinson: They were sent according to their

application to the Foreign Section to which attributable.

)
-3

,-' s | Speaking specifically of the Far Eastern matters which we are

n | now concerned with, they went to the far Eastern section,

(O Captain McCollum.

g. 1| Mr. Gosell; Now was it his responsibility to distribute
E 2 ! them to certain officers in the Navy Department?
| % Sl | Admirel Wilkinson: No, it was his responaib;lity only
% B ! to arrange for such distribution, but it was my over-all
E 15 : responsibility to see that it 'was done, and we had Commander,
) 10 1 now Captain Kramer, who was charged with the distribution.
Hook 17 :
follows |
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Witness \;rukinmn Cuestions by: Mr. Gesell

Mr. Gesell; With the physical distribution?

Admiral Wilkinson: The physical distribution.

Mr. Gesell: Now who, in the Navy Department vas om ' |
ths distribution list? .

fdmiral Wilkinson: The Secretary of thp Navy, the
Jhief of Naval Operations, the Assistant Chief of Naval
Oporatian',' Dirsstor of War Plans, and nylolf.

Mr. Gesell: Can you give us the names of thoss
MIficers at that time?

Admiral Wilkinson: Secretary qui, Admiral Stark,
ﬁoar Admiral Ingersoll, Rear Admiral Turner, and myself,

Mr, Gesell; Did Admiral Noyes, the Cﬁiof of the
Division vhich wvas intercepting, decoding, and translating
them, gat them?

Admiral Wilhnum: He got them before they came to
e, or to my seorstary. | |

Mr. Gesell: Then he was on the list, vas he not?

Admiral Wilkinson: He wvas not on the formal distribu-
tion 1list, but he passed on them before they wvere sent
to me. ‘
Mr. Gessll;: 1In other vords, he passed on them as part
of hig aflminiutrattve rauponnibiiitiol? ; i
, Admiral Wilkinson: Yes. He may or may not have

actuslly seen each one. He may have delegated that

i

4 '
. . " . [ ' 7 . " ® .l s ' | ¥ - ’
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With the physical distribution?

Admiral Wilkinson: The physical distribution.

Mr. Gesell: Nowv vho, in the Navy Department vas on

ths distribution list? . E

fdmiral Wilkinson: The 3ecretary of the Navy, the : |
Jhief of Naval Operations, the Assistant Chief of Naval |
Operations, Dirastor of War Plans, and myself.

Nr, Gesell: Can you give us the names of those
Sfficarl at that time?

Admiral Wilkinson: Secretary Kgoi, Admiral Stark,
;.loar Admiral Ingersoll, Rear Admiral Turner, and myself.

Mr, Gesell;y Did Admir;l'liayou, the Chiof of the
Division vhich vas intercepting, decoding, and translating
them, gat them?

Admiral w11hnam: He got them before they came to
ne, Qr to my seorastary. |

Mr. Gesell: Then he vas on the list, wvas he not?

Admiral Wilkinson: He vas not on the formal distribu-

tion list, but he passed on them befors they wvere sent

to me.

L)

Hr. Gesell; 1In other words, he peassed on them as part

of his administrative responsibilities? . : |
, Admiral Wilkinson: Yes. He may or may not have

actually seen each one. He may have delegated that
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h2 - authority at times vhen he was not in his office, but ip

'~ genoral he sighted them all, I believe.

‘ Mr. Gesell: Did the Navy make any distribution outside

>f the Navy Department of the texts of thesc intercepted

. | isezsages?

fdmiral Wilkinson: Yes, to the White House.

Mr. Gesell; To any place else?

i
|
|
t
|
. i /dmiral Wilkinson: Not to my knovledge. Some months
|
.

.. + 9efaors it had gone to the State Departmsnt intermittently

! 3 il vith the Army, but mors rscently the Navy take the White

| D :. House direct and the Army take the State Department direct.
Mr. Gesell: Now, as I understand it, the interception

and translation and decoding of these messages vas vorked

out between the Army and Navy, so if the Navy intercepted

Qg Q9 "NOLONIMSYM "TINYd © Ol'e M

—
e
- —  —— i — — ———

- — - e — e — —

and translated and decoded, it gave a copy to the Army

and if the Army intercepted, and translated and doéodod,

1o |, 1t gave a copy to the Navy?

gl Aduiral Wilkinson: Both services were supposed to
s |t have & full file of the intercepts made by either oy both

1 together.,

b

Mr. Gesell: Did you personally ses all of the messages

intercepted?
ji Admiral Wilkinson: No. A number of them vere exciuded

25 || in the 0ffice of Communications from further transuission,
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if they veres purely trivial, such as ordering a dozen pair
Of trousers, or something of that sort, for instance, but
those vhich vere of any importanss vere sent to tho Naval
Intlolligonoo , and vere then placed in a bogk, and I saw
all of those.

I might not have :Foad those to vhich my attention vas
not callel, becaus?» sometimss they vere very bulky, but
they vere available there for me to see.

Mr. G23ell: Did anyone in the 0ffice of Neval Intelli-
gon;so make any selection from that complete file of the
mesgages vhioch vere to be sent to the other officers on
thes distribution list?

AMmivel Wilkinson: Captain Kramey, vho vas primerily

in our chain of command, but had additional duties with

>
>
3
0
&
v
»
=
A
2
»
0
X
Z
O
-‘
G
£
©
0

Somaunicationes, usually I believe sav them all, even those

of the trivial naturas vhich he excluded.
Those which vers then placed in the baok and brought
50 us, he usielly muwrked them as more important, wvith
=1ips or othervise. Tﬁnt mavking vas checkad aftervards
Yy Captain McCullom and myself, and we both lc;nnod
sherough the bodk. g .
Mr. Geasesll: By the time it had gotten io you, thorbouk

aed on it, by a clip or other desi nation, some means of

:alling particuler attsntion toc the moxs important messages?
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Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Furthermore, when matters vere particularly 11:1‘!:01-01a1'.1.n3‘,.Ilr
or the messages were particularly mtarut_'.ing,- Captain |
Kramdr would print out to. the recipient by his finger,
or by turaing to the page, particuliarly whnt he thought
thyy would be interested in.

Mr. Gesell: Y gathyr you used a syatem of a book
rather than a looked pouch, such as they hai 1ﬁ.tho:frny,'
is that corract?'

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Osgell; Will you exzplain just hev that wvas done?

- Was thers ons book which contained these messages vhioch

ent to the various pscple on the list, or did each receive
a2 list of the messages that he should oxan4n§?

Admiral Wilkinson: I am not suras which vaat to the
White House. I am sure they had a separats copy vaich
wvaat to the Naval Alde, and he used that, and prespared
his own brie® of thut for ths Prazident, but as to the
addressees in the Naryinopnrtuont, it vas &ll in ths same
book,

Mr. Gesell: And vhen that book had besn distributed
argand throiuga the various Nlry Department recipients, 1t
48Dt batk to the officers who originally 1n1t1atod and pre-

pared ths book, did it nate
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fdalral Wilkinson: Yes, except one 60Dy, I believe,

vas retained in the Gesgraphiocal Section concerned, and in
this case it vas the Far Fastera S»ction. Iun fast, the
0%k would have in thoi-o matters concerning the Geraman
3r vaatever forsiga intercept wvas broken down, and proved
to be interssting. '

Uposn its ratara, thnss appertaining to those gther
Zesographic sections would bs taken cut and filel ia their
saspective sections, and the Far Ealfém intarooptl filel
La ths Far Eastsra Ssction.

. Mr. Ossell: But you, or Mrd Stark, or Admlral
Tagersill, and the otasr recipients did noi: have any msans
oi" keaping yoiur owva filea of thosy mtercaptn?'

*dmiral Wilkinson; No.

Mr, Gosell: You examlnsd th? book anl returned 1t?

fdmiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Ge2asll: Wast opportualty vas given to those officers
to study and sppraise, ani raadl over more tahan onocs, if you
vill, the various messages in the book?

Admiral Wilkinson: They might hold the book as long as
they vishei, or ssal for 1t t5 eomd bask azain, but in the
interest of sscurity, we 4id not like to seanl out individusl
taples for ratention.

Mr, Gesell: Under your system, if oa® of the officora

L
Pl

-
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chose to hold the book he deslayail t?n othwy officara frox
sacziving this Mport;nt information?

Admiral Wilkinson: Tawsy did, but thebaarar of the
ook vas vaiting outside and might remind them to ratura
it.

Mr. Ga391l, 30 as a nat;tor of general practice, I
take it, the baok went rapidly through the officers, the
)af2icars permitted to rerd it, and thi»n lsafed thirouga
the paxaj, roxling matteras of particular intoro_ st?

Admiral Wilkinson: I wsild not suy sd. 1 kaow Captain
Kramdr often suid ‘h-a vas busy pratty near all day long
2arrying the book arynd at timei, 33 thyy took timy to

»0131 thn massnges, they did not soan them too hestily.
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

Mr. Gesell: Are you familiar with Exhibit 1 and Exhibit
¢ in this proceeding, the dipiomatic and military Japanese
intercepts?

Admirel Wilkinson; Yes.

Mr. Gesell: Can you tell us whether or not you persocnally
sav all of the messages contained in those tvp exhibita?

Admiral Wilkinson; I nacurally cannot, of my own re-
collection, speak for all of them and of course those sent
just before October 15 I had no opportunity to see, but I
should say roughly that presumably I did see them all.

Mr. Gesell: All translated subsequent to the 15th of
October?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Gesell: I was going to ask you wvhether you made
any effort to examine any intercepts which were in the file
for the period prior to your boﬁming Director of Naval
Intelligence?

Admiral Wilkinson: [ did not, except as occasion to
refer to them might come up, in which case 1 would ask Captain
Kramer to please give me the references.

Mr. Gesell: Of course, as the evidence here shows,
she situation wvas becaning quite tense by October 15, 1941,

when you took over the job, and I was wondering wvhat means

vere taken to acquaint you with what had been taking place?

|



bl ol T A N = ¥

. —— . | Ty T

EL-2

2 G 'NOLODNIHSVYM "MN0Yd W MY M

1O

] )

-
.~

10

16

)
e &

e

-}

o

' Witness Wilkinson

Questions by: Mr. (Gesell

Admiral Wilkinson: I spent several hours, perhaps a
whole day, in the Far Eastern section before I took over the

office, getting the picture from their point of view, and

talking to the officers there, and Captain McCullom particularly, |

and then Admiral Kirk as vell told me something of it.

S0 I was informed by word of mouth rather than the
examination of many documents.

Mr. Gesell: Well, when you became Director of Naval
Intelligence did you give mtruotionll to send the texts of
these messages, or the gist of the messages to the various
commanders in the field?

Admirel Wilkinson: Not to my knowledge. 1 oarril_.od
out the existing system, and I know there was every emphasis
on the importance of security because of the value of this
method of intelligence.

Mr. Gesell: What do yoﬁ mean by the "existing system" ?
In this Exhibit 37, which the committee has before it, there
are & substantial number of dispatches sent to fawaii prior
to October 15, 1941, which are directly based upon magic,
and in fact some of the dispatches actually quote the text
of the intercepted message verbatim, and as I think \;re
pointed out in the beginning this morning, some of them re-
fer even to the purple code. I have in mind particularly

the messages on pages 4 to 12 which were sent out almost

ST T IS T I——
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Witness Wiikinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

in the month of .mly,hlgll»l, to the Commander in Chief of
the Asiatic Forces, and to the Commander in Chief of the
Pacific Forces.

Nov vhat do you mean by “practice"? It looks as though
there had been & practice of sending out these messages to
the theaters concerned. . '

Admiral Wilkinson: I was told, and understood, that
such messages were not to be sent. I belies, although 1 am
not at all sure, that the messages you speak of as examples
vere in July and none subsequent until we come to that critical
message with respect to burning the codes,

Mr. Gesell:; I think thatv is a fair statement, Admiral,
that most of them were in July, until the code burning messages
'yhioiz you sent out in the very last days.

Admiral Wilkinson: I think it is a question too or the
overlapping responsibilities or Naval Intelligence and
Communications. If I may dwell on tnat a moment, the Navy
had established in Pearl Harbor and in Corregidor sub-units
for the collection of radio information and for the breaking
of such codes as, with the limited personnel and limited
i'acilities they nad, they might be able to do.

In connection with the work back and forth between those
agencies and the Washington O0ffice otf' Communications there

vere certain messages sometimes interchanged with relation

H
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' Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

a2 codes, and I believe, although this again is information
that was told me, that these messages of July were more or
Jess of that nature. They had & trick name known as "Jonab”.
¥ think that those vere more & discussion of that, in a way,
and then again they vwere messages or information of what
they had learned from the codes.
Mr. Gesell: You say that you were told n;:t to send
such messages to the field. Who told you that?
Admiral Wilkinson: I 'do not recall the specific informant.
I think it was my predecessor. It may nave been Captain
McCullom.
Mr. Gesell; Either Admiral Kirk or (aptain McCulliom?
Admiral Wilkinson; Either Admiral Kirk or Captain MeCullom.

Mr. Gesell: Now I have been talking about the actual

texts of the intercepted messages.

Admiral Wilkinson: 7Yes. |

Mr. gesell: What was the situation with respect to
aanding out a gist or summary of the intercepted messages?

Admiral Wilkinson; There was alwvays the danger that the
action that we took might have come from no other source
than code-breaking, and in consequence.

If I might diverge a little, in the Soutn Pacific ve
-egeived one time, when Admiral Halsey was in Australia and

I vas his Deputy Commander, ve received a message from Admiral
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Admiral Kirk or Captein McCullom, or from the Chief of Naval

- .

550

Questions by: Mr. Gesell

Fimitz that Admiral Yamamoto would be coming down to Buin
#nd would be following & very definite schedule, and in
Admiral Halsey's stead I arranged for an interception. Of
wourse that story is now well-known, there being two days
e epara, I #ant word back to Admiral Nimitsz i:hat ve werae
doing this, but I invited attention to the fact that this
yould give auspiéion that we had broken the code and we knew
«nat the schedule vas.,

In this instance Admiral Nimitz sent down his best
wishes and said, "Go to it", that he would take a chance on

the inferences to be drawn from that.

That is an example of acting upon a code-breaking

«otivity even without repeating the text of the message.

Mr. Gesell: Well, then, what you said so far, you vere

concerned about the question of security, which we have dis-

cussed in the hearings. My question was » however, first,

whether or not you were unier any instructions which in
any wvay limited your sending out to the commanders in the
field glsts or summaries of the messages; not why you didnit

80" 1L%

Admiral Wilkinson: No, I don't recall any spegific

instructions to thet effeat.

Mr. Gesell: When you took over you didn't get from
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Operations, or anybody else, instructions that you were not
to summarize this information from the intercepts and send

it to the theater commanders?

Adumiral Wilkinson: I don't recall any specific instructions

except the general preservation of security.

Mr. Gesell: You came to the conclusion, I gather, that
you would not do so for reasons of security?

Admiral Wilkinson: I either came to that conclueion
myself or found that that was the practice in other divisions
of operation.

Mr. Gesell: You see, I am anxious 'to know which it was.
Was 1t because you found there were some orders in effect and
you camplied with them, or because you yourself made the
decision, for the reasons you have indicated, not to do 1t?

Admiral Wiikinsonz Well, I think 1t was, as I think I
ea.rlier_aaid, i1t was an existing prastice, and that I con-
tinued it in the interest of security. I do not knowv that
I had any specific instructions. I would have #oted 8imilarly
with or w:lphout instructions.

Mr. Gesell: Did you know these messages had gone out
in July, for example?

Admiral Wilkinson: No.

Mr. Gesell: Did you ever discuss this matter with any

other officers, Admiral Stark or the chiefs of other divisions
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concerned, as to whether you should or should not send out
I .

| summaries or gists of intercepted messages?
|

I Admiral Wilkinson: No, I don't recall specifically any
|
|

instances.

J

' Mr. Gesell: You don't recall any discussion of that

- matter with anyone?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. Not with respect to my

——

ovn sending out. I may have had, and I think I did have from
time to time, discussions as to information we'hnd, as to

| whether that informetion should be further sent out. I re-

| member a discussion on the first of Decembey with respect to
the evident Japanese moves in the South China Sea. I do not
believe, hovever, that that was concerned largely with code

breaking activities.

|
|
!
|
| Mr. Gesoll: I am limiting my questions now to the sending
I

out of informetion obtained from the Intercepted messages.

- —

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

! * Mr. Gesell: I understand you to say that you don't recall

| any discussions with any officers concerning whether or not

summaries or gists of the messages should be sent out?

Admiral Wilkinson: I do not so recall, no.

Mr. Gesell: Had you ever heard that any pertiocular

1
!
! commander in the field, at Hawaii or any other place, had
|
|

requested such information be sent him?




R

-1

o 8
{)

Le

I

D QO 'NOLSNIHSEYA ™MNya ¢ Qbvin

{ 10
| o |

()

e
—— e — o ——— W w0

9

. — —

. 4599

Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. I now know, but I did not
know then.

Mr. Gesell: What do you mean you now know?

Admiral Wilkinson: I think I have seen a transcript
of a letter from the Commanding Chief, Pacific Fleet, request-
ing that he be kept advised of diplomatic activities.

Mr. Gesell: You are raferring to Admiral Kimmel's re-
quest to Admiral Stark that he be advised concerning diplomatic
matters?

Admiral Wilkinson:; Yes, sir. I did not know of 1t then
and only -reoontly in oconnection with this hearing have I seen
it.

Mr. Gesell: You recall no discussion concerning that
letter with anyone?

Admiral Wilkinson:; No, sir.

Mr. Gesell: Do you rscall ever having discussed the
matter with Admiral Kirk at the time you took over your
duties?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. I am not sure he was avare
of 1t. -

Mr. Gesell: I have in my hand, Admiral, & memorandum
by Admiral Kirk dated March 11, 1941, Memorandum for the

Chief of Navael Operations, written on the stationery of the

OffiCQ of N&VE:]. Intﬁlligﬂnoe, referring to Admiral Kimmel's

. . i .
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-Ad.minl Wilkinson: No, sir.. I novw know, but I 4id not
know then.
Mr. Gesell: What do you mean you now know?
Admiral Wilkinson: I think I have seen a transcript
of a letter from the Commanding Chief, Pacific Floet;, request-
ing that he be kept advised of diplomatic activities.
Mr. Gesell: You are referring to Admiral Kimmel's re-
quest to Admiral Stark that he be advised concerning diplomatic

matters?

Admiral Wilkinson:; Yes, sir. I did not know of it then

and only 'rooently in connection with this hearing have I seen

———
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it.

Mr. Gesell: You recall no discussion concerning that
letter with anyone?

Admiral Wilkinson; No, sir.

Mr. Gesell: Do you recall ever having discussed the
matter with Admiral Kirk at the time you took over your
duties?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir. I am not sure he was avare
of it.

Mr. Gesell: I have in my hand, Admiral, a memorandum

by Admiral Kirk dated March 11, 1941, Memorandum for the

Chief of Naval Operations, written on the stationery of the

Office of N&VE:].. Intelligenoe, referring to Admiral Kimmel's
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© | letter, which contains this paragraph, paragraph 4,
"The Division of Naval Intelligence is fully avare that

|

l

. 1t 1s the responsibility of this division to keep the Commander
|

: in Chief, Pacific Fleet, adequately informed concerning foreign
|

o |, nations, activities of these nations and disloyal elements

7 | vithin the United States."

8 | I vant to show you that memorandum and ask you if you
0 ; have ever seen 1it?
o | Admiral Wilkinson; Very recently I have seen it but I

17 || think that 1s & general statement of the duties of the Naval
iz | Intelligence and it does not refer specifically to the inquiry
vhich you asked me, which was diplomatic activities, as I

recall.
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Mp. Gesell: So far as ydu vare avare, you hai no

spscificresponsibilities tovard Admiral Kimumel or any

othey commander in the field ts apprise him or thom of

—— — — -
g

- | iilplome®ic material obtained from interceptsd Japanese

¢ | mo3sages? |

7 *; Admiral Wilkinson: No, and my understanding wvas that
5 ths muterial frax"intozacp_t-rd monase; vould in general

n |, be kept higaly secret.

f (0 'r Mr. Gesell: Well now, whose raspsnsibility wvas it in the

! ', Navy Depa_rtmnt to ,a.dvi-; Aduiral Kimsel or other commandeys
y o :. of infermation vaich came from the intercepted messages?

12 | Admiral Wiikinudn: *If 1t vas pursly a queation of

.+ |, vdiplomatie sptivities, I em not sura that there was any

15 EI Eroxponl.‘!.bility to so advise him.

2 O "NOLONIHSYM "INYd ¥ dQuyM

Mr. Gegsell: On the prrt of anyone, you nmean?

LG
17 Admiral Wilkinson: On the part of anyone. When 1t

o | came to t’m question of ensmy intentions, derived from

0 ! +iplomatic aofivit!.ou, I would sgy that 1t vas that of '

20 the Office of War Plans, but I do not know vfmu_ responsi-

2t | billity it vas to keep him advised of diplomatic negotiations
. 20 : of themselves. ‘

an | NMr. Gesell: I understand you to say that as far as

sending out such information as a matter of informatiom,

e

to /dmiral Kimmel and others, you recall no discussion of

o
(y

f. i
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it, you resall no instructions concerning it, and you
recall no foquuta from him concerning it?

Muiral Wilkinson: I did not knov of the reguests., I
don't r;call es to the 4iscussion. X ﬁo knov that in our
forolgn.fortnight;y wuulury-that ve had a section of diplo-
matic activities, and ve endeavored to plase in there
evarything that ve could without eompromising the inter-
cepted messages, and to that extent it was the responsi-
bility o: my offics to place in there ‘everything with re-
gard to diplomatic activities.

With repgard to the intercepted messages, there vas a
conflict of ;ecurity vérsus the dissemination and I would
jay that there wvas no responsibility to furnish the inter-
ocsptad messages unless thsy wvere directly roiatod, or
from them could be derived intentions of the enemy with
respect to sctivities prejudicial to our floet.

Mr., Gonel}: In other words, if the intercepted messages
reached the point that it vas apparent that some directive
or order wvas necessary, then there was a responsibility,
n:nﬂ yol1 say that responsibility, in your opinion, rested in
the War Plans Division under Admiral Turner?

AMmiral Wilkinson;' It vas my responsibility to eall
his attention to it, but his responsibllity to send it out

bscauss of the directive phase of it as you mention.
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1 am 2%t attemptiag to say I hail no :I.ﬁtoro.t; but I
41dn't have the autharrity to do 1it.

Mr, Gasell: DEd you ever have any dissussions wvith
-thn Avay conderaing their practice in sending out summaries
or gists of tavss iaterandplield nn:;usa;?

Adniral Wilkinson; I wvas in very close toucth with
General Miles, and frequent conferences and mestings with

uin informally in his office and mine; ve had waskly maet-
ings vith the FBI, Mr. Hoover, and Gansral Miles and myself,

on the Pressidentially inspirsd committes set up by the

Prasideny, ve talked over secret matters of this sort,

and both General Miles and I, I believe, vars very anxious
to guard the code-bresking activities to the greatest de-
gree,

I do not recall lpooif;cully any conversation with him
Jpecifically on the question of sending out mesBages,
except that wve, from vime to time discussed the matters
that had turned up in magie,

Mr. Gesell: ‘fou mean as to wvhat the information meant,
but not what should be done with it? '

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir.

Mr. Gesell;: Well, nowv, Y wouid like to take up with

you the question of vhat the commanders in tue field may

havs knovn oconterning the interception of these messages.
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: #Hr. Gesell

Let's take firlé of all Admiral Hart at rManila,

General Miles testified, and i believe there has
been some other reference to it, perhaps in your testimony,
that thers vere certain facilities at some point in tae
Philippines, under naval command and directioa which per-
mitted the interception, translation and the decoding oy
these Japanese messages; 1is that correct? |

Admiral Wilkingon: 'fhere wero-tvo radio intelligence
staticns, onolat Pearl Hearboy and oné at Corregidor. 'They
vers primarily set up to intercept all of the information
they could get and to study out from the ship calls that
vere used by the Japanese, and the types of messages
and the frequeney oy the traffic, and so on, to figure out
vhet they ovuld from those rather than the code breaking
proper.

It became desireble, hovevof, that Adﬁiral Hart --
it apparently became desirabie, -- 1 am speaking from
hbarlay ~- that Aduiral hart be ablé to do his owvn breaking
dowva vithout the necessity of referring baek to wanhingion
end 80 21, and his section vas eniarged somevhat and some
of the facilities, vhich I would prefer not to describe,
vith reiation to code breaking, ﬁe}a sent ¢o nim. 30 that

he had out thero facilities for breaking some code, incluaing,

I believe, the diplomatic code.
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My, Uesell: If I may Lntq;rupt -

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mr. Uesell;y That meant that Admiral Hart had at
Corregidor facilities for intercepting, translating and
decoding messages of the type vhich appear in Exnibilit i,
and Exh£b1§ ¢ here?

Admiral Wilkinson: I would say partial facilities. I
don’t tnink he was as vell oquippéd as Ve vers nere,

mr. Gesell: You mean he wvasn't as wvell equipped in
toerms of manpover?

Admirel* Wilkinson: Yes, and experienced uanpaver.

Mr, Gelell:. Expsrienced manpover, o}, I suppose, the
ability to intergept as many messages, because he hadn'’t

30 many intercepting stations under his control, fever
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of these stations?

Admiral Wilkinson; He had a very limited number.

Mr, (esell: But he vas in a position to translave
and decode any mossages vhich he himeslf intercepted;
is that correct?

Admiral Wilkinson: No. In many codes, he couldn't
touch them, but in the sc-called purplo'coda he wus to
a dbgroe enabled to translate. In fact, there were many
" codes ve never got into ocurselves here in Washington.

Mr. Gosell: But the purple code wvas the code in which
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Hr. Gesell
many of thes¢ messages vhich ve have in volumes 1 and 2
vere sent?

Adniral‘wilﬁinaunz I think practicaliy all of volume
1l and some few in volume 2. I am not certain.

Nr. Gesell: Was he in a position to decode messages
sent in other codes of the type contained in volume 2;

Aﬂmiﬁal‘ﬂilkinaanx 1l am not sure. Again,.l have
besn speaiking entirely from hearsay and would prefer that
the specific degree of his abliity be answvered by a com-
munications otficqr.

Mr. Gesell: You were about to discuss the situation
at Hawaiil?

/dmiral Wilkinson; Yes,

Nr. Gesell: 1 am sorry I interrupted.

Admiral Wilkinson: Similarly in May of 1941,an
agency of the same type wvas set uﬁ 1ﬁ Ha#ﬁii. Captain
Hochefort was, then Commander, vas sent out, &nd half a
dozen former language students who had recently been
evacuated from Japan because of the growing crisis vers
sent to 3oin.h1m, and he had perhaps 20 or 40 enlisted
mon. They were working mainly on the radio intelligence
proper. That 1is, tﬂé calls and nho+trarf1c aﬁalyail

that I have just descriped.

Mr. Gesell: Ship locations?
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Admifal‘wilkinlnn: Ship iocations, and so on. And
he did not have the facilities for the purple code, nor
originally facilitips for any code.

Later he vas asked by the department to specialize on
one or tvo codes, and vhat success he had, I am not sure.
' Mr. Gesell; He was in a position at Hawaili to inter-
cept but he wvas not in a position to decode and hence to
translate messages tnat vere sent in the purple code?

Admiral Wilkinson: Correct. ‘Thnere vas a certain
amount of interchange between Corregidor, Hawaii, and
Washington, particularly on ship movements. In fact
Corregidor becames our controi and authority on ship move-
ments, but there was not much, as Y understand, and I
again defer to the Communications vitness, there was nov
much transfer through Hawaii of' the purple ?oae molhagas
translated in Washington and at Mhniia.

Mr. Gesell: Well, as far as you vers avare, they
had not then facilities at Hawali for intercepting, trans-
lating and decoding tnose messages there through wnich
Admiral Kimmel or any other officer could have gotten the
information” I

Admiral Wilkinson: No.

Mr. Geselli; Were summaries prepared in the Navy

Department of the intvercepted mallageu,'daily summaries of

EEE———— e W _—
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: rr. Gesell

kind?

fdmiral Wilkinson: In the morning, 1 forget vhether
it vas 9 or 9:30, the .Secretary of the Navy had a eonfer-
enée at vhich the Director of Naval Intolligoncc 1.;ould
discuss the newvs from all over the world, chiefliy, or
course, the Naval activity, tne progress of the war. At
that special ivems in connection with £t which might have
been dug out of a code vord vere sometimes mentioned, But

in viev of the size of that comference, there were apout

20 officers in it, the referonces to the intercepted

messages vers rather fev and Yar between.

Mr. Baecher nas just invited my attention to this --

Mr. Murphy: hr. Chairman, vhile we are walting, I
might diredt gounsel?s gttention to the fast that on page
31 of the voluae 1, of the narratiya, there is a difference
betveen that and the Admiral’s testimony.

Senator Ferguson: I can't hear the Congressman.

Mr. Murphy: I might direct counsel®s attention that on
page 31 of the narrative, there is a diffeyence., It mAY

be that it could be cleared up nov. and ve vould save time

latey.

- j ..i.g.d
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Hook | Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell
AL-1 A |
| : Mr. Gesell: I dori't even have a copy of that narrative.

i f '

. Admiral Wilkinson: Here you are.

(Document handed to counsel.)

Admiral Wilkinson: My attention has been invited to a
summary as of the 10th of October listing the number of approxi-
mately 12 dispatches which are briefed, but I .don't recall

. aver having made any of those in my time or seeing them, and I
am not sure who made this particular one. I did have, initlally,
a little summary, daily summary of the Japanese situation,

. which contained information as to what activities vere a.pparont

I as to Japan, from all sources, including intercepts, and I
thought that was continued through Pearl Harbor Day, but I

| have been since informed that it was discontinued on the 24th

of October, 9 days after I came in. I don't recall why 1t
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- was discontinued. In fact, my recollection was that I had

- continued 1it.

Mr. Gesell: We had been addressing our inquires to those
l summaries and the deily analysis to the Navy Department,
l Admiral, particularly from the point of view of seeing whether
. either the daily summary or the daily situation reports, as
- they wvere sometimes called, were'oontj:nuod after you became

Director of Naval Intelligence, and we could find none beyond

October 24,

- - R
e —— o —— . — —— — —

Admiral Wilkinson: The 24th is what I have been informed.
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; I don't recall having stopped them or why they vofe stappod.
In fact, my recollection, wvhen I was at sea and somebody asked

about it, was that we had continued to use them.

P Mr. Gesell: Is it your present information tha.t those

g | summaries were not used beyond October?

| Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir, and Captain McCullom so

-1

" advises me, as well as the information you have.

a |l Mr. Gesell: Those summaries did contain information

from Japanese intercepts, as I understand it.

1()

Admiral Wilkinson: Not in the form of quoting the

intercept, I don't think, but just mentioning the fact that

INYd ¥ Qv W

.+ |1 the negotiations are continuing, and that some objection,
apparently, was made by Tokyo to some terms, or something of

that sort.

< O 'NOLONIHSYM

Mr. Gesell: Were those dally summaries prior to October

16
17 sent out to the field at all, to the theater commanders?

e Admiral Wilkinson: I believe not. They were purely for

1o | internal consumption. Very small. Only two or three paragraphs
oG * a day. |

| Mr. Gesell: Do you feel that the information that was
available to Commander Rochefort and others concerned with
Naval Intelligence at Hawaii was sufficient for them to know

|

.3 || at least in a general way that we were in a position not only
!
| to intercept but to translate and decode these Japanese

. : '
s = .y ® i i - % .
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

rpasages in the purple a.nd other high codes?

Admiral Wilkinson: I would say ad, particularly as
Capté:l.n Rochefort was an expert in that line, and vas familiar
vith the latest developments up to the time that he left in
May. Then also wee had three intelligence agencies out there -~
ve had two. Captain Rochefort, who belonged to the Communica-
tions Division of operations, and wa.fs assigned to duty with
the 14th Naval District, but wvas available to the Commander
in Chief, and we had directly under Naval Intelligence the
District Intelligence Officer at Honolulu, and he was given
information at times with respect to individuals that might
have appeared in codes intercepted in South America, or even
in these codes here,; but it was carefully guerded a‘t the time.

Mr. ﬁeaellg Was either the Distriect Intelligence Officer
or Commander Rochef'ort under any restriction or inhibition
which would have prevented them from advising Admiral Kimmel
that these messages in these high codes wers in fact bo:!.ng
decoded and translated in Washington?

Admiral Wilkinson: I don?t think so. They vwere in close
contact with his Intelligence Officer, which was the third
agency I spoke of, Captain lLayton, who was Intelligence Off lcer
on his staff. He was in full contact continually with
Captain Rochefort and frequently, I bélie_ve, with Captain

Meyfield of the District Intelligence Office.
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Witness Wilkinson Queastions by: Mr. Gesell

Mr. Gesell; Did Captain Layton himself have the informa-
tion that we wvere decoding and translating these messages?

Admiral Wilkinson: I don't kmow. I think probably he

did.

Mr. Gesell: What préoisely vas the relationship that
existed between the office of Naval Intelligence here in
Washington and these vﬁiw Naval Intelligence agencles 1in

Hawaii? Could you describe the organization to us so we

understand?
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11:40 Am , | Witness Wilkinson © Questions by: Mr. Gesell |
2 Admiral Wilkinson: The Navy Department does not deal | ?
| . ' 3 in general with any subordinate foroces in the fleet or a ‘
4 unlit. In other words, there was no relation between the 'i
s || fleet intelligence officer and the Office of Naval Intelli- | |
e gence. The matters went direct to the Commander-in-Chief of | f
% 7 the Fleet and weve handled there ov he ocould handl; it with k
! : ;

; 8 his intelligence offilcer or his gunnery officer or whoever
)

o ||he saw fit, but we did not have the direct chain between ;|

i 10 || fleet and office that was existent in the Army between the ?
11 heai of G-2 and the G-2 of the division. So mu€h for the I
12 fleet,

13 Mr, Gesell: That means that ONI oommunioated diveuﬂiy *

14 with the commander of the fleet on all intelligence mat-

15 tevs?

= .G MOTaWMIHEAW JUAY 4 OAAW

16 Admiral Wilkinson: Either with our division of communi-

| 17 catlicns or in more important matters either direotly with

|
B | ‘
1 | 18 || Admiral Stark or Admiral Ingersoll, his assistant. L
' f 19 Mr. Gesell: #nd always direotly to the commander of the :
; | 20 || Fleet? ' |
é & 21 Admiral W4lkinson: Yes. With respect to all of the ;*
}r 1 . 22 || other agencies the intelligenoce officer was under the command |
g t 23 of the district officer, Admiral Blooh. Administratively he
f I 24 checked in with us, or we would send him such information as

25 ||hwe and such requests that we might have to make, but we had

oy 4 1
Slatve shade il it Al han b pbioand odhnnl b oty 1o L2 okl o b 0 o
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

1 o
| no authority to order him to do anything qnd he was 4ivectly

| on the staff of the commandant of the Distriot.

The szme thing I would say would apply to Captain Roche-
fort'oxocpt that his administrative pavent in Washington
was not ouvselves, ONI, but rather the Communiocations Divi-
sion, but he likewlse was on the staff of “dmiral Bloch and
primarily his officer and under his command and only related
to communications, as Mayfield was to us for matters of ad=-
ministration, finance, general technlque; techniloal matters
lavrgely.

Mr. Gesell: But matters of intelligence and information
of impovtance to Admiral B loch in hils command, that wentin

through either Mayfield or Rochefort through to Admiral Bloch

himself?

Admiral W4lkinson: Most any --

Mr, Gesell: I say from you or from Admiral Stark, 1
am talking about non-administrative matters.

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes. I was Juet thinking. The Dl-
etrict Intelligence Officer, as you vrecell, was a member of
the Domestic Intelligence side, which had to do with suspeots
and there was an unending chain of information being exchanged
about Jim Smith or Hashihaha Tadlkama or whatever you like.
That sort of information, that intelligence went dlrectly

from the Distriot Intelligence Officer to our Domestic branch.
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For any major matters we would be likely to communicate di-
rect to the Fleet vathor*than-to the Distriot fellow, because
the Diastriot fellow'e activities were on the domestic side
and not on the foreign aide.. He had nothing to do with Japan
as a‘nation ov with the Japanese Fleet.

Mvr, Gesell: So that means, in effeot, to wind it all
up, that all communiocations concerning diplomatio'hattevs ov
majovr Japanese developments would be communicated to Hawail
direotly through the Commander-in-Chlef of the Pacific Fleet,
Admiral Kimmel?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, sir,

Mr. Gesell: Now, you veferred a moment azo to this
question of the translation of the intercepted meaaagea: I
understood you to testify that you made available certain of
the personnel and mar_have pald part of their salaries, to
Qaaist in the translation.

You wevre aware, were you not, that there was a very sub-
stantial delay, sometimes as much as twenty-eight days, some-
timees quite a bit less than that, between the date of inter-
ceptlon and the date of translation of these Japanese mes-
sages?

Agmiral Wilkinsen: I do not becall the specific delays

but I knew that for varilous reasons there were at times de-

lays of some periocds. Those veasons might, of course, be

\}
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transmission times, they might bo' due to the necessity of
brekking a new code, they might be the diffioculties 1in break-
ing the ocipher., I am not too fahiliav with the mechaniocs,
but I think most of us understand that you have to have ocer-
tain material, a certain amount of material in the code be-
fore you can begin to break it. Now, if somebody sends 1in

a ten word message, that might lay aside for some time before
a longer message and two or three others would come in to
give you enough materlal to attaok ;t, but coming back to
your question yes, I was aware that there were delays.

Mv., Gesell: Preocisely. Looking at these messages, Just
as any of us from day todday, you can see that the transla-
tion date was frequently later than the date the message was
sent.

Admiral Wilkinsons Yes. I Just wanted to mention what
I 414 because I think General Miles has emphasized the delays
in translation and transmission of the intevcept to the head
office, but he has not mentioned the mechanical delays which
were inherent there even if there had been as much pevrsonnel
as we would have liked. Theve wasn't much we ocould do about
it. Both Admiral Noyes and I were concerned about it be-
cause I think we were tvying to plck up all the Japanese and

English speaking people we could find in the country,

Mr, Gesell: That i1s what I wanted to get at. Consoious,

.
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as you must have been, of some of these delays; some of which
might have been of a nature which you could cure by manpower
and steps of that nature, what did you do to encourage orv
speed up translation, if anything?

Admiral Wilkinson: Admival Noyes and I were both cone-
cerned about 1t. His primary difficulty was in getting peo~
ple actually to work on the mechanios of it, ;nd I endeavored
to asslst him by proocuring translatore and we found, I think,
some half a dozen translators that we could produce and we
sooured the ocountry for more and finally started a school to
make more, because there were none in the country that
elther could orv wouLd take the Job with us.

Then, also, we endeavored to expedite and speed our

investigations of the personnel that Admiral Noyes wanted to

have employed e cause, obviously, we could not go blind and

have somebody in there without knowlodge of who he was be-
cause the whole thing might be blown eky high, so we inves-
tizated all the appliocants for the code breaking work and
part of my efforts, as you asked, was to expedite thoao_in-
vestigations. That was done through the Domestio branch,
Mr. Gesell: Now, there is one questian that was asked
of the Army side in that conneotion and perhaps we ought to
have the corrvesponding Navy rigut"o if we ocan. How many peo~

ple, 1f you know, were actually engaged at this time 1n‘tho

\
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businese of intercepting and tvanalating-ind decoding th;ao
messages and messages of a similar type?

Admiral ¥Wilkinson: I have no vreal knowledze about that.
I know it grew into very large numbers and I would say offhand
at that time it was somewhers between three and five hundred,
but I would defer to the testimony of the communicator,

Mr., Gesell: Well, perhaps before you 103;0 the stand
you ocan get som® oheck made and zet that figure for us, Ad-
mival,

Admiral Wilkinson: Surely.

Mr. Gesell: I am sure, also, I 4id4 not ask you one
other question concerning the transmission of these inter-

cepted messages ovr theilr text to the theaters. I have been

'dlsocussing with you Hawaii., Did you send information concern-

ing the intercepted messages to Admiral Havt,oé to any other
commander overseas, which was mo'm'a detalled 1in any rvespect
than the information you sent Admiral Kimmel?

Admiral Wilkinson: Not to my knowledze. There may have
been some intevrchanze between the communications officervrs in
attempting to straighten out their respective translations of
certaln intercepts, but there waa_nothing from my office.

Me. Gesell: You 414 not undertake, for example, to

suppl7 Admiral Havrt with the text of intercepted messages

| which he had not himself intercepted but whiczh you had picked

i

e ey
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up here throuzh your raoilitioa in Washington?

Admiral Wilkinson: Not from my office. That might have
been done in the communiocations office in an endeavor to
straighten out thelr code work.

Mr. Gesell: Would you know whethevr ovr not that was done?
Do you have any inforvmation on that?

Admirval Wilkinson: I do not,

Mv, Gesell: Admival. we have had a great deal of dls-
ousaionlhnve‘ooncerning gsome of these messages which are ocon-

tained in volume 2. They are the so~ocalled militery instal-~

11ationa and ship movement intercepts. I first want to 3Jet

straizht conoerning the message that appears at page 12,

|

whioch sometimes has been veferved to here as the bombing plot
message, oOv Bometh4ng of that sovrt.

admiral Wilkinson: Yes,

Mvr., Gesell: Now, that was sent prior to your becoming
Director of Naval Intelllgence, sinse 1t 1s dated Septohbor
24, 1941 and it was translated October 89, 1941, I understood
you to testify that you assumed your post on October 15, 1941,

Admirel Wllkinson: Yes,

Mv., Gesell: But I gather that you had been at least
avound the Division a bit beforehand before you formally took
’ovev the Job to find out what 1t was all about?

Admival Wilkinson: Yes.
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Nrv, Gesell: I want to ask you when this message fivst ?

came to your attention? g
hdmival Wilkinson: I don't vecall whether 1t came to
my attention before or on my tuking over, or when a laterv

message may have ocome in referring back to 1t, but I was awave

of it at some time during the fall.

Mvr. Gesell: You were aware of it prior to the attack?

_Admiral "1lkinson: Yes,
Mr. Gesell: And were you similarly aware of various
meaeageu.whioh other witnesses have had called specifizally to

lthelr attention,JI think sometimes when you have been sitting

here in the vroom, you mizht say implementing this messaze,
g1iving vreports of ships broken down by areas and asking for
later detailed reports ov asking fov veports when ships were

not moving, were not making any movements and other messages

of that concernt

Admlivral Wilkinson: I was aware of most but not all of
them. I couldn't say positively all.

Mr. Gesell: "hat evaluation d1d you give to those mes-
Bages at the time as far as thelr tending to indicate in any
way the possibility of an attack on Pearl Havbob? .

Admiral W4ilkinson: The Japanese forv many years had the

'veputation and the fact bearing out that reputation of being

imeticulous seekers for every sovap of information, whether by
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Witness Wilkinson

photography or by written veport ov ﬁthevwiao.

We had recently, as reported to me, apprehended two and
I think three Japanese naval officers on the West Coast mak-
ing investigations of Seattle, Bremerton, Long Beach and
San Diego. In the repovrts that we had gotten from them there
had been indicatiocns of movements and looationq of ships;
in the papers that they had there were instructione for them
to find out the movements and locations of ships except in
Hawall and the Philippines, the infevrence being that these
fellows that were planted in America, these naval officervs,
were not to be vesponsible for movements in Hawaili and the
Philippines because there. were agencies finding that informa-
tion therve.

My geneval impression of aéding all this reputation and

this faot and these data together was that these dispatches

were part of the general information system established by the

Japanese. We knew also that certain information had been
sought in Panama and again in Manila., I did not, I regret
now, of course attribute to them the bombing target signifi-

cance whioch now appearvs.

Mr. Gesell: These officers of the Japanese Navy who were

apprehended on the West Coast you said were getting informa=~
tion concerning the movement and location 6f ships?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Questions by: Mvr. Gesell
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Questions by: Mvr. Gesell

Mr, Gesell: Do you mean to tell us that those officers
*hadlinutvuotions to break down the harbors at Seattle and
other points on the cost by areas and to desiznate the loca-
tion of ships in those areas withparticular reference to
whioh were at wharves and which were tied to buoys?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, because theve are no whavves,
as I vrecall, 1in San Pedro except for one or two used by naval
vessels, at San Diezo, and Bremerton to a limited oxteﬁt. I
do reocall ovr have been informed that one of the reports on
Lieutenant Commander Racarda with reference to Bremerton
specifled what ships were at anchor and which ships were
alongside of a dock.

Mr. Gesell: Could we aee that report?

Admiral Wilkinson: I will endeavor to find 1it,

Mr, Gesell: Generally, those fellows were simply get-
ting ship mowement reports, weren't they, what ships came into
the harbor and which ones went out and what their destination
was and whether or not they were movingz in convoy and the

type of general ship movement information that is spread

throughout this volume 27

Admiral Wilkinson: In general, yes, but the location
of the shlp, whether 1t was alonzside of a dock or elsewherve,
di1d give an inference of work going on aboard her which would

be of value to the question of when. she might be moved, what

et ARSRISSSEE SRR T . |
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‘her state of veadiness was and the inference that we drew from
|

i

‘thip was that they wanted to know everything they ocould not

+:onlr about the movement of the ships and those that wevre pre-
|

?aent and, therefore, acoounted for and not a threat to them

iin some other waters, but also with veference to those that

 were present where they were located with veference to state

Fof repailr. For instance, the ships that were partioﬁlarly in

;Peavl Harbor might be in repair and not ready to go to sea,

]wheveaa those at anchor in the etream would be ready, or would

be so on shorthotice. Those at double banked plers might not

be, particularly the inside oune might teke some time to go

!Dut.

|
| Mr. Gesell: Well, you recognize, don't you, that that

18 not the type of information tHat this message was designed

|
”to get. Looking at the messaze now in the cold light of the

i
flearing room 1t 18 appavent that they weve trying to spot the

:voaaola there 80 as to determine theirp state of repair orv

readiness for battle at sea.

| Admiral Wilkinson:

| It would seem so now since the loca~

tions might be of velue not only as a bombing target but also

|

kov submarine attack orv midzet submarine attack.

| Mr., Gesell: 1In an attack made rvom‘eithov above or under

?he water,

1
j Admiral W4lkinson: Yes.

i
{ Mv, Gesell:. And it is quite apparent that this message

|

- L]
O
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; Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell
i was not designed to get information concevning the likelihood
' of certain wessels department from the havrbor or the state of

f their repalr or ordinary ship movement information. It 1s

- Just what we have been ocalling 1t, 1s 1t not, Admiral?

Admiral Wilkinson: Yes.

Mrv, Gesell: A bombinz plot messaze.

Admiral "ilkinson: In general, yes. There are other
thinze of ooncelivable techniocal matters and intevest. The

ships that are in variocus havbovs at the time might be an in-

diocation of what the ocapaclity of this section of tﬁe harborv
was wWith vespect to taking ailarge fleet in, but those arb
technlcal intevpretations whioh are hardly gevrmans to the

-

 purposes as we now see 1t.

'Mv. Gesell: Well, they are not the technical intevpre-
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- tatlions that you gave the message at the time either, arve

| they? .
' Admiral Wilkinson: I den't know that we did.
Mr. Ges=2ll: Do you vecall disocussing this messaze with
~ anyone in the Navy Department at the time prior to the attack

on Pearl Harbor?

- Admiral Wllkinadh} Yes, I think I mentioned to one ov

' more officars that the Japs seemed quite curious as to the

| lay-out in Pearl Havbor and at the time I thought that that

wag an evidence of their nlcety of intelligence.
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Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

Mr., Gesell: Now, who do you recall discussing that with?

Admiral Yilkinson: Captain MoCollum partiocularly, pos-

- 81bly with Admiral Inzevscll or fidmiral turnev, I cannot say

specifisally whoo

The Chairman: It 18 now twelve o'clock and the committee

I will vecess until two o'clock.

(Whereupon, at 12 o'clock noon a recess was taken

until 2:00 o'clock P,M. of the same day.)

’
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AFTERNOON SESSION 2:00 p.nm.
. a | The Chairman: Counsel will proceed.
TESTIMONY OF ADMIRAL THEODORE STARK WILKINSON
(Resumed )
a | Mr. Gesell: Just as we were recessing, Admiral Wilkinson,

7 |' you said you had talked to Admiral Turner, you thought, and

!

g l ' to Captain McCullom, concerning this plat dispatch of September

T e . il

| n | 24 we have been discussion.

T Do you recall your conversation with them?

; Admiral Wilkinson: Only, as I think I said, that I

mentioned it showed as an 111ust.ra.tion' of the nicety of detail

1+ |1 of intelligence the Japanese vere capable of seeking and getting.
T Mr. Gesell: What did they say to you?

B, . Admiral Wilkinson: I don't recall --

D Q "NOLIONIHMSYMN 'INYAd ¥ dhy A

TR | Mr. Gesell: Did they agree with you?

17 Admiral Wilkinson: I don"'l: recall an agreement of that
(v | sort. Of course, it must be remembered that all during this
1o || year, 1941, there was some exchange of letters to and from
0 | Pearl Harbor and Hawaii on both the Army and Navy side

2t emphasizing the fact that tha first priority of risk or

2 harard to Pearl Harbor was a bombing attack, next an air
@3 |l torpedo attack and third a submerine attack. This Iinformation
::'.1. | they vere getting there, while substantiating that fear, was

¢5 |, belng obtained, in some degree at ieast, everywhere that we

)|
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' Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

know of -- Panama, the West Coast, Manila.

- Mr. Gesell: You are in agreement with General Miles
that there is not another message like thin one that appears |
in this document or which was intercepted prior to Pearl
Harbor, is thero?l

Admiral Wilkinson: Not to my recollection. I explained
thaet the other harbors were, perhaps, smaller and need not
have so much of a differentiation.

Mr. Gesell: When you pointed this out to Admiral Turner
and Captain McCullom &3 an example of the nicety of Japanese
eabiomgo, you don't recall vhat they said?

Admiral Wilkinnon: I don't recall except, perhaps, to
agree with me. I am not even sure in recollection that I
pointed it out to Admiral Turner.

Mr. Gesell: What evaluation did you place upon the

document? Did you think it hed some significance that required

your bringing it to their attention?

Admiral Wilkinson: Not particularly.

Mr. Gesell: Did you recommend that it be sent to tﬁo
fie1d? '

Admiral Wilkinson: No.

Mr. Gesell: Was there a discussion of whether it should
or should not be sent to the field?

Admiral Wilkinson: Not to my rscollection.

I - .I -
I Lk TP e W d L L L L gy I e



s, SO, A ST B

— s e

e R e o * T == R -

S O "NOLDNIHMSYAM "MNYd ¥ Ohv M

(4

H

i

11

1O

<)

- — . — = = —— — -

4028

Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

Mr. Gesell: So that your testimony amounts to, if I
understand it, a statement that you somevhat casually pointed
this out and said this wvas an example of the nicety of
their espionage?

Admiral Wilkinson:; Exactly. |

Mr. Gesell: I would like to ‘diaoual with you now,
Admiral, for a few moments some of.the alert oi' wvarning
messages which were sent by the Navy Department, the firsat
at page 18 of Exhibit 37, the basic dispatch, da.tot:.l October
| 16, 1981, ‘ |
The Vice Chairman: What page? |
| Mr. Gesell: Page 18.

I will read 1t:
"PHE RESIGNATION OF THE JAPANESE CABINET HAS CREATED ‘

A GRAVE SITUATION. IF A NEW CABINET IS FORMED IT WILL PROBABLY

BE STRONGLY NATIONALISTIC AND ANTI-AMERICAN, IF THE KONOYE
CABINET REMAINS THE EFFECT WILL BE THAT IT WILL OPERATE UNDER
| A NEW MANDATE WHICH WILL NOT INCLUDE RAPPROCHEMENT WITH THE

' UNITED STATES. IN EITHER CASE HOSTILITIES BETWEEN JAPAN AND
RUSSIA ARE A STRONG POSSIBILITY. SINCE THE U.S. AND BRITAIN
ARE HELD RESPONSIBLE BY JAPAN FOR HER PRESENT DESPERATE

| SITUATION THERE IS ALSO A POSSIBILITY THAT JAPAN MAY ATTACK 1

| THESE TWO POWERS. IN VIEW OF THESE POSSIBILITIES YOU WILL
|

TAKE DUE PRECAUTIONS INCLUDING SUCH PREPARATORY DEPLOYMENTS
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' AS WILL NOT DISCLOSE STRATEGIC INTENTIONS NOR CONSTITUTE
' PROVOCATIVE ACTIONS AGAINST JAPAN. SECOND AND THIRD ADEES
| INFORM APPROPRIATE ARMY AND NAVAL DISTRICT AUTHORITIES.
' ACKNOWLEDGE." |

That is addressed to the Commander in Chief in the
Atlantic and the Pacific and the Asiatic Fleetl. That appears
to.have been sent the day after you took over as Director
- of Intelligence. |

Were you consulted concerning 1t?

| Admiral Wilkinson: No. Purely an operational matter.

Mr. Gesell: You do not re;sall having participated in
any discussions concerning 1t?

Admiral Wilkinson: No, sir.

Mr. Gesell: Did you have knowledge that it was sent?

Admiral Wilkinson; Not until after it was sent.
Mr. Gesell: How soon after?

Admiral Wilkinson: I don’t recall. Perhaps the next day.
I Mr. Gasell:- Wes it the practice for messages, when you I
| were not in on their drafting and transmission, for them to

be sent to you afterwards for your information?

" Admiral Wilkinson: Not as a frequent practice. Oooauiomlli

yes, Ocoasionally 1 would hear of them in conversation and

|
f| lock them up.

Mr. Gesell: If tkey weren't sent to you, how would you
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be in a position to know whether the information you had

been obtaining as Director of Naval Intelligence was being

— e ww
- -

properly evaluated?
Admiral Wilkinson: I had confidence in the officers

Ny il . | W

comprising the War Plans Divisions. But there was no back

T — L — S ——— W
S— - = -

—

7 check in thelir consultation with me to see if I thought it
|
4 | was properly evaluated.
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Mr, Gesell: That confidence, I can see, might give
you a degree of personal assurance, but it didn‘t give you
. any mﬁatien, did 1t, as to precisely what svaluation
'~ was being made. Without having that information, howv coulid
 Yyou properly conduot ydur office?

Admiral Wilkinson: I don®t knov that it afrects

(T GRS SR L I R ity

o | the conduct of my office, because I would give the informa-

o | tion that ve colloctéfl, and frequently advised on what my

‘i ovn inferences were from it, but vhat action was taken

e — o

.+ | as a result, I do not think was necessarily involved in

(> the conduct of my office.

Ea Mr, Gesell: I understand your testimony to be that you
1+ || recommended evaliuations from time to timo in tranoni;ting

iz | this information to War Plans and to the Chief of Raval

S 0O 'NOLONIMSYM MINYd ¥ Que sy

15. Oporaticnl?

[ 11 fdmiral Vilkn_uonz In discussion, yes. Sometimes 'in
o | wr!.ting, but seldom,

1o | Mr. Gesell: But they didn‘t inform you of what action
) I, thﬁ, took?

Admiral Wilkinson: Not as a matter of routine, no.

Mr. Gesell: You might find 1t out from talking to
' somebody, and then you wouid look it up?
24 | Admirel Wilkinson: They might te]l me, as a mater or

6 |} I1nterest, but I vas not an information addressee, as it

\
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vere. Jt vas not a mdter of established routine,

My. Gesell: How did you knov vha: information to send

out to the theatre commanders if you didn't knov vhat
evaluation had been placed upon tne information you had
already transmitted?

Admiral Wilkinson: The information I sent to the
theatre commsnders vas of a static nature. ‘There vas a
fortnightly summary, of wvhich you speak, which vas partly
action, partly static. There were in the course of the
yeay 1941, for innt:anc.o; some 62 or 70 so-called Far Eastera
serials, twvo and three-page discussions of ppeciric items,
vhich might range from & nev type of torpedo to Japanese
aircraft production, thinges of that matter.

We also supplied to the Fleet a so-called Japanose
monﬁgraph, ONI 49, a full ducription' of ail the informa-
tion ve had been able to obtain ¢oncerning Japan. |

Mr. Gesell: Ny question vas vhether 1t woula not
' have aided you in pointing up the information to know what

evaluation vas being placed on tne information you vere
' sending.
Admiral Wilkinson: I am mohtioning the types of informa-
tion I iont vhich, of itself, was not the type that was
' involved with the evaluation of the current situation. 4as

| 1 have earlier mentioned, the matters concerning operations
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I 414 not send to the Fleet except on reference tes the
Onerations orrrcé or War Plans of themselves.

The Chairman: Will counsel suspend for a moment?

1 am eoupoll;d to leave because since last Saturday
1 have been suffering with a very high temperature, and
vith vhat looklllike & severes ocase of the flu, and I am
out against the advice of the doctor, and am ecompelled to
leave now and.do vhat he told me to deo.

I had intended to have an executive session this after-
noon, but that 1is impossible, Therefors, I ask Yo be
exoused for the rest of the day. I hope to be back
tomorrowv.

Mr. Jesell: We are sorry you are 111, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: The Vice Chairman vill preside.

Mr. Gesell: The next varning message vhich I wish to
inquire concerning is that appsaring at page 32, the message
of November 24, 1941, addressed to the Commander in.chiof
of the Asiatic, Pecific and certain other districts, 11,
12, .135..and 15, reading as follows:

"CHANCES OF FAVORABLE OUTCOME O} REGOTIATIONS WITH
JAPAN VERY DOUBTFUL, THIS SITUATION COQPLED WITH STATEMENTS
OF JAPANESE GUVERNMENT ANO MOVENENSS OF THAEIR NAVAL AND
MILTTARY FORCES INDIGATE 1N OUR OPINION THAT A SURPRISE

AGIRESSIVE MOVEMERT 1N ANY DIRECTION INCLUDING ATTACK ON

4 1 L 3 = = . L ‘ 1
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mxrrnﬁs Ok JUAN 13 A rosanﬁ,m. CHIEF OF SYAFF HAS
SEEN THIS DISPATCH CONCURS AND REQUESTS ACTION ADDRESSEES
TO YRFORM SENIOR ARMY OFFICERS THEIR AREAS. UTMOST SECRECY
BMCESSARY IN ORDER NOT TO COMPLICATE AN ALREADY TERSE SYTUA-
TION OR PRECIPITATE JAPANESE ACTION, OGQUAMN WILL BE INFORMED
SEPARATELY ., " '

Did you haye anything to do with the sending of that
HepnBagis?

Admiral Wilkinson: No.

The Vice Chairmaen: What page is that?

Mr. Uesell: Fage 52.

Did you khowv it vas sent at the time?

Admiral Wilkinson; Nov until after it vas sent.
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Mr. Gesell: How long after did yocu know about 1t1
Admiral Wilkinson: I am not sure; a day or two.
f Mr. Gesell: You were not consulted concerning this,

i concerning 1ts wording ov whether o~ not it should be sent?

Admiral Wilkinson: Noo

Mr. Gesell: The next messaze of a warning nature ap-

pears on page 36 and 1s the messaze of Novemte v 27, 1941,
It ia the same message, 1t 18 the messaze sent at the same

time the Army warning messages of that date, from the Chlef

- - —— e e -

of Naval Operations to the Commander-in-Chlef of the Pacifio
f1and Aglatio Fleets, vreudlng as follows:

' "This despatch 18 to be consldered a war warning.
Negotiations with Japan looklng toward stabilization of
conditions in the Pacific have ceased an an azgvressive
h move by Japan 18 expected within the next few days.

The number and equipment of Japanese troops and the orvr-
ganization of naval task foroes indlcates an amphibious
expedition against either the Phlllippilnes, Thal or Kra
Peninsula ovr posslbly Bovpeo. Execute an appropriate
defensive deployment preparatovy to carrying out the
tasks assigned in WPL46, Inform Distriot and Army au-

thorvities. A similar wavning is being sent by War De-

partment. Spenavo inform British. Continental Di-

W Ee SEels - = - -

gtriots Guam Samoa direoted take aporopriate measures

e

{

- » = . r i
- g ol ST R e LR - -l " e BN ..'ﬂ'_- . B o L . o i b > o  d y el 4 = Al e P |"‘.lﬁ |' i e B




392
s
.
.

¢
=
b
(]
1
4
o
-
c
<
O
mn

| !

: ] i' uaedn
|

4636

Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mvr, Gesell

azainst/sabotage."

Were you oconsulted 1in connection with the sending of that

message?
Admiral Wilkinson: No.

s Mv. Gesell: When d1d you first know it had been sent?

{ admival Wilkinson: I think two later, perhaps three.

5 I might explain, of oourse, that these were highly seo-

0 ret messages and the Chief of Operations was anxious to con-
i £ine the knowledge of them to the minimum and that since I
%waa not directly concerned in them once I had proferved the
informatlion upon which they were based, that he thought that
%ineithev he nor his instructions carried the necessity of ad-
i'vielng me about it. I do not feel, in other wovrds, that I

.~ ' was negleoted by not being consulted because I had proferred

[
L {:) the giving of the information and I am sure that it was well
Mr, Gesell: And when you say you learned of these mes-
0 i*aagea you meant that you learned 1t informally by hearing of
o }ithem rather than hearing of them in a direot way as a matter
ﬁof off 1ce ovrganlzation?

Admival Wilkinson: As I recall them.

Mr. Gesell: Is your testimony with vespeoct to the

'messaze on page 38 transmitting the Army warning message of

iNovembev 27th and contalinling instructions conserning overt
i

SRR WL U E— Sy
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acts? ;
Admiral Wilkinson: Yes,
Mr. Gesell: That takes us up to November 27th, Admiral.
~ Now, from the period from November 27, 1941 to December 7,
0 :1941 the only o6ther messages of a warning natuvre that one
i ‘ finds here directed to Hawall were the messages conterning
f the destruotion of codee. Did you haw anything to do with
0 é those messagest?
Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, we initla ed those after a ve-
i ference to the Chlef of Operations.
(2 | Mr. Geselli: You are veferring to the messages that ap-

|

.+ | pear at 40 and 41Y
i | Admiral Wilkinson: 40 particularly. 41 I believe was

|

' | inltiated by the communiocations offlcer.

it

| Mr. Gesell: You initiated the message on page 407

FEN R Admivaliwilkinson: Th&t is my Eeoolleotion._

T Mv. Gesell: Will you vread that, please, 8ir?

L0 Tt Admiral Wilkinson: (Rezding)

on ,3 "Highly veliable information has been received that

categoric and uvgent instructions were sent yestevday

l to Japanese diplomatic and consular posts at Hong Kong

o | Sinzapore Batavia Manlla Washington and London to destroy

o most of thelr codes and ciphers at once and to burn all

o other Amportant confidential and secret documents."
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"Witness Wilkinson

Mr, Gesell: That was addressed to the Commander-ine
Chief or'tho Aglatic and Pacifio Floﬁt. to Com 14 and to Com
167
' Admiral Wilkinson: Yes, slir.

* NMr. Gesell: You say You initiated that dispatch. Will

you tell ug --

1 Admiral Wilkinson: That 38, to my vr-collection. Let

‘me ocheck one moment, eir, Yes, I believe that to be the oase.

| Mr. Gesell: Well, will you state for the committee,

' please, what the ciroumstances were as you recall them undev

:whiah that message was sentt?

|
| Admiral Wilkinson: I think Captain.ﬂpCollum advised me

that intelligence had been received through the magic source

!
as to this and I think there had been other confirmatory evi-

1 dences by reports by cable as to signs of burning. ‘I am not

. sure of that last. I know there were such revorte but whethev
l

! they occurred before this dispatch wae sent or not I do not
l
;know. but the primavy basis I think was the magioc.

t Captain MoCollum recommended 1ts being sent and I agreed,
Gof course, and after consultation with either the Chief orv
~the Assilgtant Chlef of 6povationa it was 8o sent.

1 - Mr. Gesell: Did you approve the dispatoh then? I mean
' 414 you drvaft the plan then?

l
l' Admiral V4lkinson: I belleve Captain MoCollum drafted

\
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4%,
| Mr. Gesell: And then after it was drafted you approved

|1t ov initialed 1t before it went out?

! Admiral Wilkinson: I think I probably presented that in

' pervson to Admiral Ingersoll, I may have actually voloaudd it.

L
"

| The éooovd'ma: show,
|

1

- copy of the original message, which shows it was veleased by

11

} you and an initial which appears to be Admiral Inzevsoll's
|

Mv, Gesell: I have here what puvports to be a photostatio

initlals after your name,

j - Admiral Wilkinson: That would seem to bear out my etate~
J |
=1ment.

- Mvr, Gesell: You have seen that photostatic copy of the

;;dlspatoh, have you?
f Admiral Wilkinson: No.

Mr. Gesell: I want to show it to you and call your at-
ten;ion to the following words which appear on the dispatch
- as stricken following the wovrds at the end of the message,

' "Seoret document":
| "From foregoing infevr that Brange'plans early ao-
tion in Southeast Asla." |

Do you vecall that?

-
s m

Admirval Wilkinson: I do not but if 1t ococurs in the

| original 4dispatch 1t was doubtless so drafted by Captain

i d
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 Witness Wilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

. MoCollum and approved by me. Whether I struck it out or
- whether Admiral Ingersoll etruck it out, I cannot reocall,

Mr. Gesell: You cannot vrecall which ‘of you struck 1t

}

| out?

' .Admival Wilkinson: I have no recollection which.

. - Mvr. Gesell: I would llke to have this dispatch marked
?.aﬂ an exhibit. It will be exhibit 83, Mr. Chairman.

iﬁ.-} The Vice .Chairman: It will be so received,- . = s:+.
i | : | (The document referred to was

mavked Exhibit No. 83.)

|fevence and evidence for the preceding two weeks that orange

|

'was contemplating aoction in Southeast Asia and did in faot

Admiral Wilkinson: I may state that we had evevry in-

Hao,aot.

|
| &

| Mv. Gesell: Well,-will you state to us at this time,
yhdmiral, what was the considered condlusion and evaluation
veached by you and your staff in the Office of Naval Intelli

¥
‘gence prior to the recelipt of the one o'olock message as to

!

where and when the Japaﬁeae would attack?

|

E

|

{ Admiral Wilkinson: I think our conclusion was that
!evevy evidence indicated an attack in the South China Sea
f

on either Siam or the Kra Peninsula. Those evidences were

%almoat indisputable. There wevre possibilities of attaock

elsewhere ranging, in fzot, from Panama on the Pacific Cosst

|
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to Hawall, Guam, Wake and the Philippines. The nearer sach |
. . of these objeotives was to Japan, to our mind the greater ths 3
j probability of thelr attack. As 1t happened we all know that
- they attacked all of those on the far side of the Faoifio_
Coast, Hawali, Wake, Guam and the Philippines. |
| 'Hv."Geaellz Well, 414 you have any information, written
"+ ov oral, pricr to the actual attack which specified Haiaii
~ .| aa.a point.of attack? i
zzﬂdmival_W1lk1naon: - Not the slightest.
% - ;. Mr, Gesell:. You say there were indiications that they
. | ' [ g_i,.ght. a‘_tt_qt_:;k' Hawall and otherv pointfa in the -Pacific. .What
 weve those indications? Y T
; '+ - - Admiral Yilkinson: I don't thing I satd "indlcations".
i b ;;I sald poaslbilitieaa
| . Mr, Gesell: I be: your parvdon,
Admirvral w11£1nson= That was within the range of prac-
' ticability that they should so attack,
| Mr, Gesell: Well, my question was dirvected as to what

f information and evidence you had on that point. Did you have

i any evidence ovr information to show that Hawall was a pos-

; sible point of attack or a probatle point of attack? 1
! Admiral ilkinson: - Not that it was a probable point.
2Thove was every possibility that it was a possible pcint of

!'attack in that the Japanese N:vy's steaming radius and thelrv

i
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Witnese VWilkinson Questions by: Mr. Gesell

capabilities, as the Intelligence people say, and I am learn~
' ing to say, and their pfobablo oapabilities indicated that
i_thoy oould come there. It was possible. %o 1in fact was
?_Soaytlo'posaiblo.
! Mr. Gesell: Well, now, I would like to veview with you
;ror a moment some of the information you had.or a naval na-

+  ture to see whether we can get, perhaps, a move specific

7 understanding of what you had befovre you.

You knew, d4id you not, for example, on the 25%h of
. | September that the combined home fleet of the Japanohe had
undergone extensive pevsonnel changes and that that personnel

Eivuovganination, which was not normal for that time of yecrv,

; ?was intevpreted by your people to mean that prepavatlons were

. Lboing made fovr an emevgency?

( f' Admivral Wilkinson: Yes,

| Mr. Gesell: You also knew, d4id you not, on the lst of
‘Novembbv that the Japanese Navy, accordling to statements

1) ?émado of its own people, was vready fovr any lmmedlate eventu-

;allty: that mobilization plans had been carvried out including

A . — - =

‘not only changes in oommande but inovease in ship ovews to
full war complement?
Admival Wilkinson: Yes, the ships had been docked as

'well.

i
{

. T T aw A R W W A————— - o —

Mr, Keefe: Right theve may I ask what wae the date of

?
|
|
]
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